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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Apollo Hospitals Intsrnational Limited, Ahmedabad.
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OPINION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Apollo Hospitals International Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the **Holding Company”), and its subsidiary and Joint Controlled Companies ( the Holding
Company, its subsidiary and Joint Controlled Companies together referred to as the ‘Group”) which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Censolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as the “Consolidated Financial Statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aferesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in ths
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (‘Ind
AS’), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Holding
Company, Subsidiary Company and Joint Controlled Companies as at March 31, 2023, and their consolidated profit/
loss, their Consolidate Total Comprehensive Income, their Consolidated changes in equity and their consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards cn Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Holding, Subsidiary Company and Joint Controlled Companies in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Act. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
the Consolidated financial statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Consclidated financial statements as a whole, and informing our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Report, but does not include the standalone and
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Sec 134(5) of the act with respect
to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows, and consolidated statement of changes
in equity of the Holding Company, subsidiary Company and Joint Controlled Companies in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133
of the Act. The Board of Directors of the Group including the Holding Company , subsidiary company and Joint
Controlled Companies are responsible for maintenance of the adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Holding Company, subsidiary Company and Joint Controlled
Companies and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been
used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company,
as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Group including the Holding
Company, subsidiary Company and Joint Controlled Companies are responsible for assessing the ability of the
Holding Company, subsidiary Company and Joint Controlled Companies to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective
managements either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

|
The respective Board of Directors of the Group including the Holding Company, subsidiary Company and Joint
Controlled Companies are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Holding Company,
subsidiary Company. and Joint Controlled Companies. i
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence

the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3) (i) of the act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company, Subsidiary and Joint Controlled Companies which
are companies incorporated in India, as adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidate
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such control. |

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Holding Company, subsidiary Company and Joint Controlled
Companies to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statelpentf or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidﬁnce
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the‘Holding
Company, subsidiary company and Joint Controlled Companies to cease to continue as a going concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Holding Company,
subsidiary Company and Joint Controlled Companies to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements, of which we are the independent
auditors. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. |
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company, Subsidiary and Joint Controlled
Companies included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regardrng,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requiremetits regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. |

From the matter communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matter. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public dlSClObUIG about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public mte}rest
benefit of such communication.

OTHER MATTERS

a. We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of one subsidiary included in the Consolidated
financial statements, whose financial statements / financial information reflect total assets of INR 5,416 lakhs and
Net assets of INR (1,031/-) lakhs as at March 31, 2023, total revenues of INR 2,719 lakhs and Total
Comprehensive Income of INR 484/- lakhs and net cash inflows amounting to INR (182/-) lakhs for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements/
financial information also include the Holding Company’s share of net loss of INR (323.05) lakhs for the i/ear
ended March 31, 2023, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of jointly controlled
companies, who;e ﬁnanclal statements / financial information have not been audited by us. These financial
statements / financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by
the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiary, jointly controlled entities, and our report in terms of sub-
sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid Subsidiary, jointly controlled
entities, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our OpII‘llO[‘l on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports
of the other auditors.

|

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS \

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowlédge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.
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(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books
and the reports of the other auditors.

(¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss includin‘g Oﬁher
Comprehensive Income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the

purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors of the holding company as at Marcl} 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding company and the reports of the statutory
auditors of subsidiary company and Joint Controlled Companies incorporated in India, none of the directors
of the Group companies is disqualified as at March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Sec.164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such control, refer to our separate report “Annexure ? which
is based on the auditor’s reports of the Parent, subsidiary company and Joint Controlled Companies
incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and }operating
effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial reporting of those companies. ‘

(g) With respect to other matters to be included in Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: |

In our opinion and best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the ren?uneration
paid/provided by the holding company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Holding Company (Refer Note:

(i) The Holding Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

(i) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, subsidiary Company. and Joint Controlled
Companies :
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(iv) (a) The respective Managements of the Company, subsidiaries and Joint Controlled Companies

v)

which are companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company,
subsidiaries and Joint Controlled Companies to or in any other person or entity, outside the Group,
including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company, subsidiaries and Joint
Controlled Companies ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The respective Managements of the Company, subsidiaries and Joint Controlled Companies
which are companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company, subsidiaries
and Joint Controlled Companies from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company,
subsidiaries and Joint Controlled Companies shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(vi) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances performed by us on the Company, subsidiaries and Joint Controlled Companies which
are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i) and (ii) of Rule 1 1 (€), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

(vii) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of

account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility is applicable with effect from April 1, 2023 to the Company, subsidiaries and Joint
Controlled Companies which are companies incorporated in India, and accordingly, reporting
under Rule 11 (g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023.
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1. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's

Report) Order, 2020 (the
Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in

"Order"/ "CARQO") issued by the Central Government in terms of
the Auditor's report, according to the information

and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company,
subsidiaries and Joint Controlled Companies included in the consolidated financial statements of
the Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there ar¢ no

qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.

For S Viswanathan LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0047708/5200025

o 2 57>
V C Krishnan \D

Partner

Membership No: 022167
UDIN:23022167BGZCY V6469
Date: May 13, 2023

Place: Chennai
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Annexure A to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Section 143(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Apollo Hospitals International Limited
(“the Holding Company”) as of March 31%, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, subsidiary and Joint Controlled Companies companies
which are companies incorporated in India are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as

required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. '

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidate Financial Statements.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:
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1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and

3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Holding Company,
Subsidiary and Joint Controlled Companies Company which are Companies incorporated in India, have, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements and such
‘nternal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March
31, 2023, based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements
established by the respective company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.(ICAI)

For S Viswanathan LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0047705/5200025

V C Krishnan

Partner

Membership No: 022167
UDIN: 23022167BGZCY V6469
Date: May 13, 2023

Place: Chennai




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2023

All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

As at As at
Particular Note No 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 5 10,123.90 9,883.87
(b) Capital work-in-progress 5 25.08 24,49
(c) Lease Assels 2,736.12 2,905.85
(d) Other Intangible assets 6.1 6.16 46.65
(e) Financial Assets - -
(i) Investments - -
(i) Trade receivables 8 = -
() Loans = -
(iv) Finance lease receivables - =
(v) Other financial assets 9 164.73 146.29
(f) Deferred tax assets (Net) 19 - (101.64)
(g) Other non-current assets 12 - -
Total Non - Current Assets 13,055.99 12,905.51
Current assets
(a) Inventories 10 655.88 609.45
(b) Financial assets - -
(i) Other investments - -
(ii) Trade receivables 2,934.04 2,999.30
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 3,309.77 2,564.79
(iv) Bank balances other than (jii) above 3,253.25 1,662.51
(v) Loans ’ - -
(vi) Finance lease receivables - -
(vii) Other financial assets 9 684.93 466.65
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 13 1,102.78 1,164.58
(d) Other current assets 12 2,486.14 1,814.34
14,426.79 11,281.61
Assets classified as held for sale - -
Total current assets 14,426,79 11,281.61
Total assets 27,482.79 24,187.13

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For, S.Viswanathan LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No: 0047708/5200025

5 m.,&

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

W L

V C Krishnan

/~ Director

Partner ' Director
M No. 022167

UDIN' 230226 Bz CYVé4 4)

-

Neeraj Rajbehari Lal Sud mar Sahu
Chief Operating Officer Chief Financial Officer

Place : Gandhinagar
Date: 13th May, 2023




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2023

All amounts are in Lakhs uniess otherwise stated

UDIN 2300 161Bbzc YV €469 \

As at As at ’
Particular Note No 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capilal 14 10,060.31 10,060.31
(b) Convertible non-participating preference share capital - -
(c) Other equity 15 3,826.69 2,338.17
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 13,887.00 12,398.47
Non-controlling interests (344.54) (182.17)
Total Equity 13,542.46 12,216.31
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 1,981.63 3,596.72
(i) Lease Liabilties 5.2 3,269.92 3,311.81
(i) Other financial liabilities 17 11.32 14.37
(b) Provisions 18 331.44 208.21
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 565.70 -
(d) Other non-current liabilities - =
Total Non - Current Liabilities 6,160.02 7.221.11
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 395.04 179.96
(i) Trade payabies 20 1,905.25 1,068.62
(1) Other financial liabilities 17 66.15 14.34
(b) Provisions 18 461.34 385.05
(¢) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) = S
(d) Other current liabilities 21 4,952.52 3,101.74
7,780.31 4,749.71
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified - -
as held for sale
Total Current Liabilities 7,780.31 4,749.71
Total Liabilities 13,940.33 11,970.82
Total Equity and Liabilities 27,482.79 24,187.13

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For, S.Viswanathan LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No: 004770S/8200025

: /\0{\93

V C Krishnan
Partner
M No. 022167 {
. _/'
~

Neeraj Rajbehari Lal
Chief Operating Officer

Place : Gandhinagar
Date: 13th May, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

W L

Dir€ctor MDirector
Sud mar Sahu
Chief Firrancial Officer




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31st, 2023

All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Three Preceding Correspon Year to date Year to date
Note Months Three divic thres for Cl._lrrenl for Previous
Particulars Months 9 period | period
No. 3196‘:;:23 ended ";:E:Zs ended i ended
31.12.2022 21.03.2022 31.03.2023 3:1.03.2022
|
| Revenue from Operalions 22 6,724.31 6,091.66 5411.96 24,944.14 2364852
Il Other Income 23 107.07 (10.18) 8.42 170.93 141.62
Il Total Income (I+I1) 6,831.38 6,081.48 5420.38 25/115.07 23,790.14
IV Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 24 1,846.55 178847 1,684.41 7,192.39 7,862.94
Purchases of Slock-in-trade 284.71 308.07 22497 1,116.03 931.60
Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade 25 (5.70) (12.15) 8.67 (24.06) (7.53)
Employee benefit expense 26 1,205.57 1,034.18 1,011.08 4,317.35 3,705.07
Finance costs 27 148.92 175.62 128.15 666.21 719.07
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 295.94 261.12 303.07 1,181.40 1,224.85
Other expenses 29 1,931.69 1,826.11  1,928.92 7,711.64 6,597.59
Total expenses (IV) 5,707.67 5,381.42 5,289.27 22,160.95 21,033.59
V'  Share of profit / (loss) of associates
VI Share of profit / (loss) of joint ventures
VIl Profit/(loss) before tax (lll-IV+V+VI) 1,123.70 700.06 131.11 2,954,12 2,756.55
VIl Tax expense I
(1) Current tax 29.3 253.49 171.67  (171.86) 619.87 293.37
(1.1) MAT Credit Entitlement 29.3 127.36 147.43 470.32 454 .37 784.30
(2) Deferred tax 29.3 45.58 (20.27)  (188.88) 21.42 (42.75)
426.43 298.83 109.58 1,095.65 1,034.92
IX Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations 697.27 401.23 21.53 1,858.47 1,721.63
(VII-VIII)
X Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations before tax - - i
Xl Tax Expense of discontinued operations - - - - -
Xll Profit/(loss) from Discontinued operations (after tax) - - - - -
Xlll Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XIl) 697.27 401.23 21.53 1,858.47 1,721.63
Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities / 24.03 - 40.79 (41.02) (107.00)
(assef) :
(b) Equity instruments through other comprehensive - - - - -
income
(c) Others (specify nature) - - = - -
(d) Share of other comprehensive income in associales = = - - “
and joint ventures, to the extent not to be reclassified to
profit or loss
24.03 - 40.79 (41.02) (107.00)
A (ii) Income tax relaling to items that will not be reclassified 29.69 - (75.49) 11.72 (32.65)
to profit or loss
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - = g & -
(a) Exchange differences in translating the financial - - - - -
statements of foreign operations
(b) Debt instruments through other comprehensive - - - - -
income
(c)Others (specify nature) - - z = -
(d) Share of other comprehensive income in associates - - - - -
and joint ventures, to the extent that may be reclassified
to profit or loss
B (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reciassified to - - - -

profit or loss




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31st, 2023

All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Thr Preceding c - Year to date Year to date
e Three ?rresp " for Current for Previous
. Note  Months ding three . .
Particulars Months period period
No. ended months
21.03.2023 ended — ended ended
31.12.2022 31.03.2022 31.03.2023  31.03.2022
XIV Other comprehensive income for the period (A (i-ii) + B 53.72 - (34.70) (29.31) (139.65)
(1-11))
XV Total comprehensive income for the period 750.99 401.23 (13.17)  1,829.16 1,581.97
(XI+XIV)
Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 697.27 401.23 2158 2,019.73 1,761.69
Non controlling interests - - - (161.26) (40.07)
697.27 401.23 21.53 1,858.47 1,721.63
Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 53.72 - (34.70) (28.19) (140.56)
Non controlling interests - - - (1.12) 0.90
53.72 - (34.70) (29.31) (139.85)
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 750.99 401.23 (13.17)  1,991.54 1,621.14
Non controlling interests - - - (162.37) (39.18)
750.99 401.23 (13.17)  1,829.16 1,681.97
Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation): 31
Basic (in Rs.) 0.69 0.40 0.02 0.20 0.18
Diluted (in Rs.) 0.69 0.40 0.02 0.20 0.18

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
In terms of our report attached

For, S.Viswanathan LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No: 004770S5/S200025

A

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

N

rec
/47')) Difector Director
V C Krishnan 0 Ve
Partner ¥s
M No. 022167
UDIV: 23022167 Ble?_C}]VG‘#:C? Neeraj Rajbehari Lal SudhiFiimar Sahu
Place : Gandhinagar = Chief Operating Officer Chief Financial Officer

Date: 13th May, 2023




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Statement of Consolidated Audited Financial Results for the Period ended March 31st, 2023
All amounts are in Lakhs uniess otherwise staled

Particulars Note THREE MONTHS ENDED YEAR ENDED
No. | Mar 31, 2023 | Dec 31, 2022 | Mar 31,2022 | Mar 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Audited | Audited |  Audited Audited | Audited
| Revenue from Operations 22 6724.31 6091.66 5411.96 24944.14 23648,52
Il Other Income 23 107.07 -10.18 8.42 170.93 141.62
Il Total Income (I+11) 6831.38 6081.48 5420.38 25115.07 23790.14
IV Expenses
Cost of malerials consumed 24 1846.55 1788.47 1684.41 7192.39 7862.94
Purchases of Stock-in-lrade 284.71 302.07 224.97 1116.03 931.60
Changes in inventory of slock-in-trade 25 (5.70) (12.15) 8.67 (24.08) | (7.53)
Employes benefit expense 26 1205.57 1034.18 1011.08 4317.35 3705.07
Finance cos!s 27 148.92 175.62 128.15 666.21 719,07
Deprecialion and amortisalion expense 28 20594 261.12 303.07 1181.40 1224.85
Other expanses 29 1831.69 1826.11 1928.92 7711.64 £6597.59
Total expenses (IV) 5707.67 5381.42 5289.27 22160,95 21033.59
V Share of profit / (loss) of associales
VI Share of profit / (loss) of joint venturas
VIl Profit/(loss) before tax (lll-IV+V+VI) 1123.70 700.06 131,11 2954.12 2756.55
VIl Tax expense
(1) Current tax 293 253.49 171.67 (171.886) 619.87 293.37
(1.1) MAT Credit Enlillement 293 127.36 147.43 470.32 454.37 784.30
(2) Deferred tax 293 45.58 -20.27 (188.88) 21.42 (42.75)
426.43 298.83 109.58 1095.65 1034.92
IX Profit (Loss) for the perlod from continuing operations (VII-VIlI) 697.27 401.23 21.53 1858.47 1721.63
X Profiti(loss) from discontinued operations before tax 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
X| Tax Expense of discontinued operalions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Xl Profiti(loss) from Discontinued operations (after tax) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Xl Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XII) 697.27 401.23 21.53 1858.47 1721.63
Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities / 24.03 0.00 40.79 (41.02) (107.00)
{asset)
(b) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(c) Others (specify nature) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(d) Share of other comprehensive income in associates and 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
joint ventures, to the
extent not to be reclassified to profit or loss
24.03 0.00 40.79 (41.02) (107.00)
A (i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reciassified to 29.69 0.00 (75.49) 11.72 (32.85)
profit or loss
B (i) ltems that will be reciassified to profit or loss 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(a) Exchange differences in transiating the financial 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
statements of foreign operations
(b) Debt instruments through olher comprehensive income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(c)Others (specify nature) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(d) Share of other comprehensive income in associates and 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
joint ventures, to the extent that may be reclassified to profit
or loss !
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
B (i) Income tax relaling to items that will be reclassified to profit 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

or ioss




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Statement of Consolidated Audited Financial Results for the Period ended March 31st, 2023
All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise staled

——— Note THREE MONTHS ENDED YEAR ENDED
No. Mar 31, 2023 [ Dec 31, 2022 | Mar 31,2022 | Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Audited | Audited Audited Audited Audited
XIV Other comprehensive income for the period (A (i-ii)+B(i- 53.72 0.00 (34.70) (29.31) (139.65)
i)
XV Total comprehensive income for the period 750.99 401,23 =13.17 1829.16 1581.97
(XHI+XIV)
Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 697.27 401.23 21.53 2019.73 1761.69
Naon controlling interests 0.00 0.00 0.00 (161.26) (40.07)
697.27 401.23 21.53 1858.47 1721.63
Other comprehensive income for the year allribulabie to:
Owners of the Company 53.72 0.00 (34.70) (28.19) (140.56)
Non controlling interests 0.00 0.00 0.00 -1.12 0.90
53.72 0.00 (34.70) (29.31) (139.65)
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 750.99 401.23 (13.17) 1991.54 1621.14
Non controlling interests 0.00 0.00 0.00 (162.37) (39.16)
750.99 401.23 (13.17) 1829.16 1581.97
Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation): 3
Basic (in Rs.) 0.07 0.04 0.00 0.20 0.18
Diluted (in Rs.) 0.07 0.04 0.00 0.20 0.18

Notes

1 The above results have been reviewed and recommended by the Audit Comimitiee at the meeting held on 13th May, 2023, and approved by the Board of
Directors at the meeting held on 13th May, 2023,

2 The financial results have been reviewed by the auditors appointed for this purpose as required under Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disciosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

3 The Company operates in three segments, viz., Healthcare Services, Pharmacy and Nursing Institute. However, the segmental results shall be consolidated by
the Holding Company.

4 Gratuity and Earned Leave are based on Actuarial valuation for the period ended March 31st, 2023.

5 The previous period figures have been regrouped/reciussified wherever necessary, to make them comparable.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Difectors
For, S.Viswanathan LLP s

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No: 004770S/5200025

/:\;"7 Dire€tor Dfrector
V C Krishnan
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Partner \y\o
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Place : Gandhinagar
Date: 13th May, 2023
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Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement as on March 31st, 2023
All amounts are in Lakhs unless ctherwise stated

Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Profit before tax for the year 2,954.12 2,871.56
Finance costs recognised in profit or loss 666.21 719.07
Interest Income recognised in profit or loss (170.93) (141.62)
Rental income recognised in profit or loss (80.94) (76.10)
Adjustments for OCI (28.52) (141.66)
Provisions for Doubtful Debts (202.23) (282.77)
Actual Bad Debt writlen off in profit or loss statement 383.20 458.23
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets 1,181.40 1,224 .85
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss 0.43 2.86
Movements in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from customers 108.81 (63.40)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (46.43) (183.20)
(Increase)/decrease in other assets (615.02) (591.01)
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets (237.18) 46.84
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to trade payables 836.74 (79.83)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 104.53 296.02
(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities 1,633.76 553.05
(Decrease)/increase in other financial liabilities 48.76 (886.17)
Cash generated from operations 6,446.70 3,726.71
Income taxes (paid) / refunds (462.57) (189.36)
Net cash generated by operating activities } 5,984.13 3,537.35
Interest received 168.53 140.41
Rental Income from properties & operating Lease 80.94 76.10
Payments for property, plant and equipment (1,223.57) (422.93)
Payments for CWIP (25.08) -
Proceads from disposal of property, plant and equipment N 5.85
Payments for intangible assets o (0.16) (13.52)
Net cash (used in)/generated by investing activities (999.33) (214.09)
Payment of Lease liabilities (398.47) (432.16)
Repayment of borrowings & others (1,303.47) (1,080.72)
Dividands paid to owners of the Company (503.02) -
Interest paid o _(659.22) (491.58)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,864.17) (2,004.46)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,120.63 1,318.80
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,047.34 2,728.54
Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held in foreign = -
currencies
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6,167.98 4,047.34
Reconcilation of cash and cash equivalents as per the Year ended Year ended

cash flow statement

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank overdrafts

Balances as per statement of cash flows

In terms of our report attached
For, S.Viswanathan LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No: 0047705/5200025

-—-' L - w4
V' C Krishnan
Partner

M No. 022167

Place : &Z\magar

Date: 13th May, 2023

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

6,563.02 4,227.30
(395.04) (179.96)
6.167.98 4.047.34

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

el

Bez.6y v

{\ Direcfor \

¢ A
Neeraj Rajbehari Lal
Chief Operating Officer

Director




Apallo Hespitals Intermational Limited

Cansolidatad Statement of Changes in Equity as on March 31, 2023

All amounts are in Lakhs uniess olherwise stated

a. Equity share capital

Balance at April 1, 2021

Changss in equily share capilal during the ysar
Balance at March 31, 2022

Changes in equity share capilal during the year
Balance at March 31, 2023

b. Other Equity

Amoint
10,060

10,

10,060

——————

Sscurities Premium Ind AS Retained Other Sub -tofal
Transition : Comprehensive carried
Resarve Earnings
Reserve Income forward
Balance at April 1, 2021 4,440.33 184.12 (3.978.33) 70.91 717.03
Profil for the year - 1,761.69 1,761 689
Impact on account of Transition to Ind AS 118 - - - - =
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income
lax - - (140.56) (140.56)
Total comprehensive Income for the year - - 1,761.69 (140 56) 1.621.14
Balance at March 31, 2022 4,440.33 184.12 (2,216.64) (69.64) 2.338.17
Profit for the year - 2,01973 2,019.73
Impact on account of Transition to Ind AS 116 - - - - -
Payment of dividends on equity shares (503)
Oiher comprehensive income lor the ysar, net of income
lax - - - (28.19) (28.19)
Total comprehensive Income for the ysar - - 1.516.71 (28.19) 1,488.52
Balance at March 31, 2023 4,440.33 184.12 (699,93) (97.83) 3,826.69

See accompanying notes to the Consolidated financial statements




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

1 General Information
Apollo Hospitals International Limiled (AHIL), Ahmedabad focuses on cenlers of excelience like Cardiac Sciences, Neuro Sciences,
Orthopedics, Cancer, Emergency Medicine and Solid Organ Transplants besides the complete range of more than 35 allied medical disciplines
under the same roof. AHIL is subsidary of Apollo Hospilals Enterprise Limited ('the Company') which is a public Company incorporated in India.

2 Application of new and revised Ind ASs
The company has applied all the Ind ASs notified by the MCA as applicable.

3 Significant accounting policies

3.1 Statement of compliance
The financial slalements have been prepared in accordance with Ind ASs nolified under the Companies (Indian Accounling Standards) Rules,
2015.

3.2 Basis of preparation and presentation
The Standaione financial statements have been prepared on the hislorical cost basis.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the cansideralion given in exchange for goods and services.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaclion betwesn market participants
at the measurement date, regardiess of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimaling
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if markel participants would
take those characterislics inlo account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement dale. Fair value for measurement and/or
disciostre purposes in these Slandalone financial stalements is delermined on such a basis leasing transactions that are within the scope of ind
AS 118, and measurements that have some similarilies to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in
use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporfing purposes, fair value measurements are categorisad into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active marksts for identical assets or liabilities that the enlity can access at the measurement
date,

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

3.3 Investments In associates and joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control s the conlractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the refevant
aclivities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control,

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are incorporated in these Standaione financial stalements using the equity
method of accounting, except when the invesiment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with Ind AS 105. Under the squity method, an investment in an associale or a joint venture is initially recognised in the Standalone
balance sheet at cost and adjusted thereafier to recognise the Company's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. Distributions received from an associate or a joint venture reduce the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Company's share of losses of an associale or a joint venlure exceeds the Company's inlerest in that associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Company's net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Company
disconlinues recagnising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the exlent that the Company has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associale or a joint venlure is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associale or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associale or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment aver the
Company's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Company's share of the net fair value of the idenlifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve in the period in which the investment is acquired.

After application of the equity method of accounling, the Company determines whether there any is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that accurred afler the initial recognition of the net invesiment in an assaciate or a joint venture and that event (or evenls)
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows from the net investment that can be reliably estimated. If there exists such an objective
evidence of Impairment, then it is necessary to recognise impairment loss with respect to the Company's investment in an associate or a joint
venture,

When necessary, the enlire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with Ind AS 36
Impairment of Assels as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount, Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with Ind AS 36 to the exlent that the recoverable amount of the investment subssquently increases.




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise slated

The Company discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venlure, or
when the investment is classified as heid for sale, When the Company retains an inlerest in the former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset, the Company measures the relained inlerest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition in accordance with Ind AS 108. The difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at
the dale the equity method was disconlinued, and the fair value of any relained inlerest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interast in the
sssociate or joint venture is included in the delermination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Company accounts for all amounts previously recognised in olher comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint venture on the
same basis as would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the relaled assels or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
dispesal of the relaled assets or liabilities, the Company reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or less (as a reclassificalion
adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.

The Company conlinues to use the equity method when an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership
interests,

When the Company reduces its ownership inlerest in an associale or a joint venture but the Company conlinues to use the equity method, the
Company reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership inlerest if that galn or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a Company entity transacts with an associale or a joint venture of the Company, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate or Joint venture are recognised in the Company's Standalone financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associale or
joint venture that are not relaled to the Company.

3.4 Investment in Subsidiary
Investment in subsidiary are measured at cost less impairment if any.

3.5 Revenue recognition
3.5.1 Rendering of services
Healthcare Services
Revenue primarily comprises fees charged for inpatient and oulpalient hospilal services. Services include charges for accommodation,
theatre, medical professional services, equipment, radiology, laboratory and pharmaceutical goods used. Revenue is recorded and recognised
during the period in which the hospital service is provided, based upon the eslimated amounts due from patients and/or medical funding entities.
Unbilled revenue Is recorded for the service whers the patients are not discharged and invoice is not raised for the service.

3.5.2 Sale of Goods
Pharmacy Sales are recognised when the risk and reward of ownership is passed to the customer. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideralion received or recelvable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on
behalf of the government. Revenue is reduced for rebates and loyally points granted upon purchase and are slated net of returns and discounts
wherever applicable

3.5.3 Dividend and interest income
All dividends, If any, from equity investments designated as at FVTOCI recognised for both the years relate to investments held at the end of
each reporting period.

Interest income from a financial assel is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis.

3.5.4 Rental income
The Company's policy for recognition of revenue from operaling leases is described in note 3.5.5 beiow,

3.5.5 Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operaling leases.

The Company as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company's net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocaled to accounting periods so as to refiect a conslant periodic rate of return on the Company's net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operaling leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are
structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensale for the Company's expected inflationary cost increases, such
increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Initial direct casts incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.5.6 Foreign currencies
In preparing the financial stalements of each individual Company enlity, transactions in currencies other than the enlity's functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transaclions, At the end of each reporling period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are relranstated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retransiated at the rales prevailing at the date when the fair value was delermined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retransiated
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or less in the period in which they arise except for:
+ exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relaling to assets under construction for future produclive use, which are included in the
cost of thase assels when they are regarded as an adjustment to inlerest costs & foreign currency borrowings;




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise slated

+ exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settiement is neither planned nor likely to
ocour (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

3.6 Borrowings and Borrowing costs
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently slated at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of
the borrewings using the effective interest rate method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional
right to defer seltlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assats are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capilalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

3.7 Employee benefits

3.7.1 Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitiing them
to the contributions,

For defined benefit relirement benefit plans, the cosl of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valualions being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of
the changes to the asset celling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the baiance
sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in
profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net inlerest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

+ service cost (including current service cost, past service cosl, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settiements);

« net interest expense or income; and

* remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employes benefits experise’.
Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The relirement benefit obligation recognised in the Standalone balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Comipany's defined
benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefils available in the form of refunds
from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the pians.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the enlily can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and
when the enlity recognises any related restructuring costs.

3.7.2 Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the
related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.
Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefils expected to be paid

in exchange for the related service.
Liabilities recognised in respect of ather long-term empioyee benefils are measured at the present value of the eslimated future cash outfiows

expected fo be made by the Company in respect of services provided by empioyees up to the reporting date.

3.7.3 Contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit plans
Discretionary contributions made by employees or third parties reduce service cost upon payment of these conlributions to the pian.
When the formal terms of the plans specify that there will be contributions from employees or third parties, the accounting depends on whether
the contributions are linked to service, as follows:!
- If the contributions are not linked to services (e.g. contributions are required to reduce a deficit arising from losses on plan assets or from
actuarial losses), they are reflected in the remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability (asset).
- If contributions are linked to services, they reduce service costs, For the amount of contribution that is dependent on the number of years of
service, the Company reduces service cost by altributing the contributions to periods of service using the allribution method required by Ind AS
19,70 for the gross benefils. For the amount of conlribution that is independent of the number of years of service, the Company reduces service
cost in the period in which the relaled service is rendered / reduces service cost by atiributing conltributions to the employees' periods of service
in accordance with Ind AS 19.70.

3.8 Taxation
Income lax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payabie, MAT and deferred tax.

3.8.1 Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax' as reported in the Standalone
statement of profil and loss because of items of income or expense that are laxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deduclible. The Company's current tax is calculated using lax rates that have been enacted or subslantively enacted by the end of
the reporling period.

3.8.2 Deferred tax




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise staled

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounls of assels and liabilities in the Standalone financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of laxable profit. Defarred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
laxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assels are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temparary differences can be utllised. Such deferred tax assels and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combinalion) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred lax liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associaled with investments in subsidiaries and assoclales, and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Company is able to conlrol the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interasts are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amaunt of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
prabable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the assat to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabiliies and assets are measured at the lax rales that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settied or the
asset realised, based on lax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or subslantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assels reflects the lax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settie the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

3.8.3 Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they refate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred lax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in lequity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

3.9 Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings mainly comprise hospitals and offices. Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes, are staled in the Standalone balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Freehaold land is not depreciated.
Fixtures, plant and medical equipment are staled at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. All repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred

Properties In the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company's accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for inlended
use. Deprecialion of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their inlended use.

Deprecialion is recognised so as to writs off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) less their residual
values over their useful lives, using the straight-ine method. The eslimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospeclive basis.

Assels held under finance leases are depreciated over thelr expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets, However, when there is
no reasanable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the leass term

and their useful lives.
Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Buildings (Freehold) 60 years
Plant and Medical Equipment 7-13 years
Surgical Instruments 3 years
Office Equipment - Others 5 years
Office Equipment - Compulers 3 years
Vehicles 6 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecagnised upon disposal or when no future economic benefils are expected to arise from the
conlinued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference betwean the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

For transition to Ind AS, the company has continued with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as of April 1,
2015 (transition dale) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.
Accordingly, certain pre-operative costs have been charged off upon transition.
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3.9.1 Intangible assets

3.9.2 Intangible assets acquired Standalonely
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired Standalonely are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amorlisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The eslimated useful life and
amorlisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimale being accounted for on a
prospeclive basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired Standalonely are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

3.9.3 Derecognition of intangible assets
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognisad in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

3.9.4 Useful lives of intangible assets
Eslimated useful lives of the intangible assels are as follows:
In the case of special software developed, the company has a policy of defining capilaiization based on period of rests, The company is
adopling a policy to amortize such capitalization in three years,

[Computer Saftware |3 years H

3.9.5 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill
At the end of each reporling period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assels to delermine whether there
is any Indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
eslimated in order to delermine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimale the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Company eslimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generaling unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocalion can be identified, corporale assels are also allocated to individual cash-generaling units, or olherwise they are
allocated to the smallest Company of cash-generaling units for which a reasonabie and cansistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assels with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indicalion that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the eslimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generaling unit) is eslimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generaling unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assat (or a cash-generaling unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
delermined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

3.10 Inventories
The inventories of all medicines, medicare items traded and dealt with by the Company are valued at cost. In the absence of any further
estimated cos's of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale, the Net Realisable Value is not applicable. Cost of these
Inventories comprises of all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the invenlories to their present localion afler adjusling for
GST wherever applicable, applying the FIFO method.

Stock of provisions, stores (including lab malerials and other consumables), stationaries and housekeeping ilems are slaled at cosl. The net
realisable value is not applicable in the abssnce of any further modification/alteration before being consumed in-house only. Cost of these
inventories comprises of all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present localion, afler adjusting for
GST wherever applicable applying FIFO method.

Linen, crockery and cutlery are valued at cost and writlen off applying FIFO method. The net realisable value is not applicable in the absence of
any further modification/alteration before being consumed in-house. Cost of these invenlories comprises of all cos!s of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location.

Imported inventories are accounted for at the applicable exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

3.11 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimale of the consideration required to setfie the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
eslimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of thoss cash flows (when the effect of the time value of
money is malerial).
When some or all of the economic benefils required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognisad as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

3.11.1 Other Provisions
Other provisions (including third-party payments for malpractice claims) which are nol co
recognised based on legal opinions and management judgment. *\sﬂ

[nsurance and other costs for legal claims are
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Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabililies are recognised when a Company entity becomes a party to the conlractual provisions of the instrumen‘ts.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assels and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
allributable to the acquisition of financial assels or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on fair value basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assels that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. |
All recognised financial assels are subsequenlly measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification
of the financial assets

Classification of financial assets |
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subssquently measured at amortised cost (except for debt instruments that are
designaled as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognilion):

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dales to cash ﬂows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. |
For the impairment poiicy on financial assets measured at amortised cost, refer Note 3.22.5
Debt inslruments that mest the following conditions are subsaquently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (except for
debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition): ‘
«  the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets,
«  the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. ‘
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOCI debt instruments. For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses,
EVTOCI debt instruments are trealed as financial assets measured at amorlised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the amorlised cost
are recognised in profit or loss and olher changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of ‘Reserve for debt instruments through other comprehensive income’. When the invesiment is disposed
of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassified to profit or loss,

Effective interest method ‘
The effeclive interest method is a methad of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating intersst income over tha
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points pald or
received that form an integral part of the effective inlerest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected|life of
the debt instrument, or, where appropriale, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition, ‘

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest
income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “Other income” line item.

Impairment of financial assets ‘
The Company applies the expected credit loss madel for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, debt
instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, other contraciual righls to receive cash or other financial asset, and f‘nan‘clal
guarantees not designated as at FVTPL. \
Expecled credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respeclive risks of default eccurring as the weighls. Credit loss is the
difference between all conlractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that 11ht-3
Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rale (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assels). The Company estimales cash flows by considering all contractual terms of ﬂhe
financial instrument {for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

on that financial instrument has increased significantly since inilial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash
shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicled over
the next 12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifelime expected credit loss model in the previous period, but delerrm es
at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not increased significantly since Initial recognition due to improvement In credit qua!lty as
compared to the previous period, the Company again measures the loss allowance basad on 12-month expected credit losses.

The Gompany measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifelime expected credit losses if the crechtfsk

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company uses the
change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit
lcsses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting dale
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supporta ble
information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicalive of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any conlractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of
Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifeime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifelime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used a praclical expedient
as permdled under Ind AS 109 This expsrted credlt oss allowance is computed based vision malrix which takes into account historical
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The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied to debt instruments at FVTOCI
except that the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet.

3.13.4 Derecognition of financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the assel's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on dispesal of that financial asset.

On derecagnition of a financial assel other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company relains an option to repurchase part of a transferred
assel), the Caompany allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it conlinues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recagnised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income Is recognised in profit or
loss if such gain or loss would have olherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that Is no longer
recognisad on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

3.14 Foreign exchange gains anL losses
The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spc! rate at he
end of each reporting period.

For foreign currency denominated financial assets measired at amorlised cost and FVTPL, the exchange differences are recogmqed in
profit or loss excepl for those which are designaled as hedging instruments in a hedging relationship. |

Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes in foreign currency rales are
recagnised in other comprehensive income. l

For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and lesses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets meas’un{ed at
amortised cost, Thus, the exchange differences on the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of
FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income. ‘

3.15 Financial liabilities and equity instruments |
3.15.1 Classification as debt or equity ‘
Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company entity are ciassified as either financial liahilities or as equity in accordance with the subslance

of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. |

3.15.2 Equity instruments |
An equity instrument is any conlract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. EqLéty
instruments issued by a Company enlity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct lssue costs.
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or less is recognised in prart or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.,
|
3.15.3 Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective inlerest method or at FVTPL.
However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing |nvoivarn ent
approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at balcw-
market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounling policies set out below, i

3.15.4 Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost
Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequ 2nt
accounling periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the
effective interest method. Inlerest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance cosls' line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculaling the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the

relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash paymenls (including all fees and points paid or

received that form an integral part of the effeclive interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounls) through the expected life of

the financial liability, or (where appropriale) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition,
3.15.5 Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting permd the

foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amorlised cost of the instruments and are recognised in 'Other income'.|

The fair value of financial liabilities denominaled in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the

end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the falr value
gains or losses and is recognised in profit or loss.

3.15.6 Derecognition of financial liabilities
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The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligalions are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An
exchange batween with a lender of debt inslruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an exlinguishment of the| original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substanlial modification of the terms of an exisling financial liability
(whether or nol atiributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an exfinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability, The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consn:lerai on
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss,

3.16 Ind AS 116 Leases:
On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has nolified Ind AS 118, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases Standard, Ind AS
17 Leases, and refated Interprelations. The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentalion and disclosure of
leases for both parties to a confract i.e., the lesses and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a
lessee to recognize assels and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, uniess the underlying asset is of low value.
Currently, operaling lease expenses are charged to the slalement of Profit & Loss. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosiire
requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.Until the 31-Mar-2019
financial year-end, leases of property, plant and equipment were classified as either finance or operaling leases. Payments made under ||
operating leases (net of any incenlives received from the lessor) were charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight- Ilne
bas's over the period of the lease.

From April 1, 2019, leases are recognisad as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available
for use by the company . Each lease payment is allocated betwesn the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income over the lease period so as to prodiuce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis, |
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
foliowing lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable
variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate

=amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees |
sthe exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and ’
*payments of penalties for terminaling the lease, if the lease term refiects the lessee exercising that oplion.

The lease payments are discounted using the interast rate impiicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the lessee's sncremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rale that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to oblain an asset of similar value %n a
similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the follawing:

+the amount of the Initial measurement of lease liability

«any lease payments made at or before the commencement dale less any lease incenlives received

«any inilial direct costs, and

srestoration costs.

Paymenls associaled with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expenss in the |
statement of comprehensive income. Short-term leases are leases with a leass term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise ITH
equipment and small items of office furniture. |

The company has adapted Ind AS 116 retrospectively from April 1, 2018 but has not restated comparatives for the year-ended March 31‘i201 9
as permitled under the specific transitional provisions in the slandard. The reclassificalions and the adjustments arising from the new leasing
rules are therefore recognised in the opening balance sheet on April 1, 2018.

4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company's accounling policies, which are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumplions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sourc S,
The estimates and associaled assumptions are based on hislorical experience and olther factors that are considered to be relevant. |Actua|
results may differ from these estimates,
The eslimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting eslimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future pericds if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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4.1 Key sources of estimation uncertainty !
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of eslimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period
that may have a significant risk of causing a malerial adjusiment to the carrying amounts of assels and liabilities within the next financial yaar‘

4.2 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment ‘
As described at 3.9 above, the Company reviews the estimaled useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reponfng
period.

4.3 Employee Benefits
The cost of defined benefil plans are delermined using acluarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about drscoLnt
rates, expected rates of relurn on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the long-term nature of
these plans, such eslimates are subject to significant uncertainty, Further details are given in note 32 |

4.4 Litigations
The amount recagnised as a provision shall be the best estimale of the expenditure required to seltle the prasent obiigation arising at the
reporting period |

|

4.5 Revenue Recognition :
Revenue from fees charged for inpatient and outpalient hospilal/clincial services rendered to insured and corporale palients are subject to
approvals for the insurance companies and corporates. Accordingly, the Company eslimates the amounts likely fo be disallowed by such
companies based on past trends, |
Eslimations based on past trends are also required in determining the value of consideration from customers to be allocated to award cmld'ns for
customers. |
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5.1.

5.2.

5.2,

Apollo Hospitals International Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

All amounts are in Lakhs uniess otherwise stated

Right to Use of Asset

As at As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 |
Carrying amounts of Right to use of Assat: |
Land 485.75 40233
Buildings 2,206.15 2,335.18
Plant and Machinery 44,22 78.34
2,736.12 2,905.85 [
Right to Use of Asset
As at As at |
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 |
Carrying amounts of Right to use of Asset: |
Land - - i
Buildings 3,216.89 3,223.29 '
Plant and Machinery 53.03 88.52 |
3,269.93 3,311.81 i
|
|
|
|
Description of Assets Land Buildings Plant'and Total
Machinery
Cost 5
Balance as at 01 April, 2021 500.72 3217.74 170.90 3889.36|
Additions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00|
Disposals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 500.72 3217.74 170.90 3889.36|
Cost j
Balance as at 01 April, 2022 500.72 3217.74 170.90 3889.36|
Additions 0.00 46.67 0.00 46.67|
Disposals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00|
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 500.72 3264.41 170.90 3936.03
|
Accumulated depreciation as on 01 April, 2021 5.59 706.18 58.43 770.21|
Depreciation 2.80 176.38 34,12 213.30 |
Deprecialion on deletion 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 8.39 882,56 92.55 983.51 |
|
Accumulated depreciation as on 01 April, 2022 8.39 882.56 92.55 983.51 i
Deprecialion 6.58 175.69 34,12 216.39|
Depreciation on deletion 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00]
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 14.97 1058.25 126.68 1199.90||
|
LogseLiability Land Buildings Flént and Total i
Machinery |
Balance as at 01 April, 2021 0.00 3248.98 120,62 3369.60||
Additions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Disposals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00{,
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 0.00 3248.98 120.62 3369.60 '
Interest and Lease Rent '
Interest 0.00 301.58 38.95 340.53||
Lease rent 0.00 (327.28) (71.05) -398.32 |
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 0.00 3223.29 88.52 3311.81|,
Balance as at 01 April, 2022 - 3223.29 88.52 3311.81
Additions - 46.67 - 46.67 (|
Disposais - - - 0.00||
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 - 3269.96 88.52 3358.48
Interest and Lease Rent
Interest - 300.48 6.68 307.17
Lease rent - (353.54) (42.18) -395.72
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 0.00 3216.89 53.03 3269.93




Apollo Hospitals International Limited |
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated \
\

6 Intangible Assets

As at As at
6.1 Other intangible Assets 31-Mar-23 31--Mar-22I i
(d) Other Intangible assets 6.16 46i.65
6.16 46.65
\
Particular Computer Total
Software |
Cost 1
Balance as at 01 April, 2021 297.45 297.45
Additions from Standalone acquisitions 10.08 10.08
Additions through business combination - T
Additions from internal developments - - |
Disposals or classified as held for sale (2.48) (2.48
Others (describe) - -T
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 305.06 305.06
|
Balance as at 01 April, 2022 305.06 305.06
Additions from Standalone acquisitions 0.16 0.16
Additions through business combination . q
Additions from internal developments - |
Disposals or classified as held for sale & L
Others (describe) - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 305.21 30521
Il. Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance as at 01 April, 2021 228.38 228,38
Amortisation expense for the year 32.50 32,50
Disposals or classified as held for sale (2.48) (2,48)
Impairment losses recognised / (Reversed) in Statement of Profit - -
and Loss
Reversals of impairment losses recognised in profit or loss -
Others [describe] - w
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 258.40 25840 |
Balance as at 01 April, 2021 258.40 258/40
Amortisation expense for the year 40.65 40/65
Disposals or classified as held for sale -
Impairment losses recognised / (Reversed) in Statement of Profit =
and Loss !
Reversals of impairment losses recognised in profit or loss - T
Others [describe] :
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 299.05 299/05 ;
\
\
/‘l |
| |




Apollo Hospitals International Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the period ended March 31,2023
All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

7 Investments in subsidiaries &associates

7.1 Break-up of investments in subsidiaries & associates

Particular 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 |
QTyY Amounts* QTY Amounts*

Quoted Investments (all fully paid)
Investments in Equity Instrumenls -

Total Aggregate Quoted Investments (A) - |

Unquoted Investments (all fully paid)
Apoilo-Amrish Oncology Services Pyt Ltd 18.55 333.50 18.55 | 333.50
Add: Share of losses of reserve of Associales (18.55) (333.50) (18.55) i (333.50)

Total Aggregate Unquoted Investments (B) - - - |

Total Investments Carrying Value (A) + (B) * - #

Aggregale book value of quoted investments -
Aggregate markel value of quoted investments #
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments -
Aggregale amount of impairment in value of investments in associates -

7.2 The movement in the entity's share of losses of the joint venture, Apollo Amrish Oncoloay Services Pvt. Ltd. Is as follows:

Particular As at 31.03.2023

The Entity's Share of Losses as on 01.04.2022 (991.19)
Add / Less: Current Year Share of tolal Comprehensive income (389.71)
The Entity's Share of Losses as on 31.03.2023 I (1,380.90)

The Apollo Amrish Oncology Services Private Limiled being a Joint Venture of Apollo Hospilals International Limiled has a Negalive Net-worth as on
31st March, 2023 by adopling the equity method of consolidation as prescribed by IND AS 28, the company has disconlinued recognising its share of
further losses as exceeds its interest in the associale. In line with IND AS 28, The Comipany would commence recognising its

share of profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recagnised, therefore share of profits of assaciale is not recognised.

7.3 Details of material associates
Details of each of the Company's material associales at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Place of Proportion of ownership interest / voting
Name of associate Principal Activity Incorporation and rights held by the Company
principal place of
As at As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Apollo-Amrish Oncology Services Pvt Ltd Healthcare Ahmedabad 50.0% 50.0%
Apoilo CVHF Limiled Healthcare Anhmedabad 86.7% 1 66.7%

7.4 Summarised financial information of material associates and Subsidary

Summarised financial informalion in respecl of each of the Company's material associales is set out below.

The summarised financial information below represents amounts shown in the associale's financial stalements prepared in accordance with Ind ASs adjusted by the
Company for equity accounting purposes. j

As at Als at
Apollo-Amrish Oncology Services Pvt Ltd 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Non-current assets 1,573.81 2,724.08
Current assets 2,042.95 2,747.58
Non-current liabilities 1,265.27 | 2,306.14

Current liabilities 4,742.28 | 4,776.20

1
|
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Apollo Hospitals International Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the period ended March 31,2023

All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

As at %As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Revenue 5,631.29 6,446.71
Profit or loss from conlinuing operations (782.78) (252.07)
Post-tax profit (loss) from disconlinued operalions . -
Profit (loss) for the year (782.78) I (252.07)
Other comprehensive income for the year 2.69 | 0.62
Total comprehensive income for the year (780.09) | (251.45)
Dividends received from the associale during the year :
l
As at As at
Apollo CVHF Limited 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Non-current assets 4,894.49 5,289.85
Current assets 521.05 578.72
Non-currenl liabilitias 4,584,10 5,163.95
Current liabilitias 1,862.48 1,261.12
As at ‘ s at
31-Mar-23 31:Mar-22
Revenue 2,719.21 3,088.44
Profit or loss from conlinuing operations (483.77) (92.66)
Post-tax profit (loss) from disconlinued operations - -
Profit (loss) for the year (483.77) (92.68)
Other comprehensive income for the year (0.78) 271
Tolal comprehensive income for the year (484.55) (90.68)
Dividends received from the associate during the year - -
Trade receivables |
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 | |
Non Current Current Non Current Cim'ent
[
Trade receivables J
Secured, considered good = i . | -
Unsecured, considered good - 3,282.75 - 1 3,697.84
Unsecured, considered doubtful - - - -
Secured, considered doubtful & 2 ' -
Allowance for doubtful debls (expected credit loss allowance) - (224.57) - (530.26)
Allowance for disallowances (expected credit loss allowance) - (124.14) - (168.29)
- 2,934.04 -

i. Confirmalions of balancas from Deblors, Credilors are yet to be received though the Company has sent letiers / mails of confirmalion to 37 TPA & Ins

out of which 24 parties responed. The balances adopled are as appearing in the books of accounts of the Campany.

ii. Sundry Deblors represent the debt oulslanding on sale of pharmaceutical products, hospital services and project consultancy fees and is considered
Caompany holds no other securilies other than the personal security of the deblors.

iii. Advances and deposils represent the advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be reaiised. The amounts of these advances and depos
considered good for which the Company holds no security other than the personal security of the debtars,

Trade receivables

2,999.30

urance parties
good. The

is are

Majority of the Company’s transactions are earned in cash or cash equivalents. The trade receivables comprise mainly of receivables fram Insurance

Companies, Corporate customers and Government Undertakings. The entity's exposure to credit risk in relation to trade receivables is low.

The average credit period on saies of services is 30-60 days from the date of the invoice.
The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for receivables excluding Group C

pmpany and

Tanzania. A direct confirmalion is oblained from Tanzania Government confirming the Receivahle amount outstanding. The provision matrix takes into
account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of
the days the receivables are due and the rates as given in the provision matrix. The provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is ag follows:

No single cuslomer represents 10% or more of the company's tolal revenue during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, T
customer concenlration risk is limiled due to the large and unrelated customer base.

herefore the




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the period ended March 31,2023
All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

i
Expected Credit I05s (%)

Ageing As at | As at
31-Mar-23 3‘] -Mar-22
Within the credit period e “ B
Less than 6 months past due 0.00% | 0.00%
6 months to 12 months past due 12.50% *‘ 12.50%
1 to 2 years past due 30.00% 30.00%
2 to 3 years years past due 50.00% 50.00%
>3 years past due 100.00% | 100.00%
Year ended Year ended
Movement in the expected credit ioss allowance 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Balance at beginning of the year (947.99) | (851.18)
Mavement in expected credit loss allowance on lrade receivables calculated at lifelime expected credit losses 340.84 1 (96.82)
|
Balance at end of the year (598) | (947.99)
The concentration of credit risk is limiled due to the fact that the customer base Is large and unrelated. \
9 Other Financial Assets 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Non Current Current Non Current | Current
|
Security deposits 164.73 - 146.29 ‘ -
Interest receivables 1.49 1.85
Operaling lease receivable - - - 78.51
Unbilled Receivables 505.65 376.22
Other Receivabies 177.79 10.06
164.73 684.93 146.29 466.65
10 Inventories As at As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
a) Inventories (lower of cost and net realisable value)
Medicines 102.35 78.29
Lab materials & Other Consumabies 553.53 531.16
655.88 609.45

11.1 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Standalone stalement of cash flows, cash and cash equivaients includa cash on hand and in banks. Cash and cash equivaients at the end of

the reporting period as shown in the Standaione stalement of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items in the Standalone balance sheet as fo|lows:
As at As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Cheques, drafts on hand & escrow a/c. - 4,14
Cash on hand 35.90 14.37
Current Account 3,273.86 2,546.28
Foreign Currency in hand - -
Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 3,309.77 2,564.79
Cash and bank balances included in a disposal Company held for sale - -
Cash and cash equivalents as per Standalone statement of cash flows 3,309.77 2,564.79
11.2 Bank balances other than (note no. 11.1) above
As at As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Balances with Banks ‘
Earmarked balances with banks (unpaid dividend) - -
Earmarked balances with banks (Others) » -
Baiances with banks to the extent heid as margin money 88.00 61.18
Other bank balances 3,165.25 1,601.33
3,253.25 1 1,662.51
12 Other Assets 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Prepaid Expenses - 277.85 = 233.06
Other Advances & Current Assels - 2,201.79 - 1,530.48
Receivable from Nursing Students - 6.50 = 50.80
- 2,486.14 - 1,814.34
13 Current Tax Assets (Net) As at As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
TDS Receivable 2,600.34 | 2,556.63
Less : Provision for Tax (1,497.56) | (1,392.04)
TOTAL 1,102.78 1,164.58
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Apollo Hospitals International Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the period ended March 31,2023

All amounts are in Lakhs uniess otherwise staled

Equity Share Capital

Equity share capital

Authorised Share capital ;

10.87,50.000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

10,87,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each (Previous Year as at 31st
March, 2020)

11,04 000 Prefarence Shares of Rs.100/- each

11,04 000 Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each (Frevious Year as at 31st
March, 2020} (refer note 16.1 for detail)

Issued and subscribed capital comprises:
10,06,03,068 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up
10,06 03 08 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up (Previous Year)

Fully paid equity shares

Balance at March 31, 2021
Shares lssued during the year
Balance at March 31, 2022
Shares ssued during the period
Balance at March 31, 2023

Fully paid equity shares, which have a par value of Rs.10, carry one vole per share and carry a right to dividends.
The fair value of shares issued for consulting services was determined by reference to the market rate for similar consulting services,

The shares bought back in the currenl year were cancelied immediately,

14.2 Details of shares held by the holding company, its subsidiaries and associates

14.3 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares

Particulars

Balance at March 31, 2022

Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Lid & its nominess
Subsidiaries of the holding company
Associales of the holding company

Balance at March 31, 2023

Apollo Hospilals Enterprise Ltd & its nominess
Subsidiaries of he halding company
Associales of the holding company

Fully paid equity shares
Apollo Haspilals Enterprise Lid & its nominees
IRM Trust & its nominees

15 Other Equity

Securilies premium reseive
Retained earnings

Other Comprehensive Income
ind AS Transition Reserve

15.1 Securities Premium Reserve

Balance at beginning of year {Securilies premium reserve)
Balance at the end of peried

As at As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
10,875.00 10,876.00
1,104.00 1,104.00
10,060.31 10,060 31
10,060.31 10,060.31
Number of shares Share capital
(Amount)
1,006.03 10,060.31
1,006.03 10,060.31
1,008 03 10,060 31

Number of shares Share capital
503.02 5030.15
000 0.00
000 0.00
50302 5030.15
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00

As at As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Number of % helding of Number of Shares held % holding of

Shares held equity shares equity shares
503.02 50% 503.02 50%
50302 50% 503.02 50%

As at As at
Note 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
15.1 444033 4440.33
16.2 -€99.93 -2216.64
153 -97.83 -69.64
184.12 184.12
382869 2338.17
As at As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

444033 444033
4440.33 444033




15.2 Relained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of perlod

Profit atiributable to owners of the Company
Impact on account of Transilion to Ind AS 118
Payment of dividends on equity shares
Others

Adjustment

Balance at the end of period

15.3 Other Comprehensive Income

Balance at the beginning of period
Movement in OCI (Net) during the year
Balance at the end of period

15.4 Ind As Transition Reserve
Ind As transition reserve
Balance at the end of period

15.5 Non-Controlling Interest
Balance at the beginning of period
Profit(Loss) during the year
Add: Adjustment lowards Secyrities Premium of non-controlling interest
Add: Adjustment towards Transition Reserve
Balance at the end of period

16 Borrowings

Unsecured - at amortised cost
Curnmulative Redsemable Preference Shares

Secured - at amortised cost
(i) Term loans

from banks (Refer nate (vi) below)
(i) Loans repayable on demand

Total

16,1 Summary of borrowing arrangements

As at As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
-2216.64 -3878.33
2019.73 1761.69
0.00 0.00
-503 02 000
0.00 0.00
0.00 000
-609.93 -2216.64
As at As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
-89.64 7091
28.18 -140 56
-97.83 -60.64
As at As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
184.12 184.12
184.12 184.12
As at As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
-182.17 -143.00
-162.37 -32.16
000 0.00
0.00 0.00
-344.54 -182.17
As at As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Non Current Current Non Current Current
58509 0.00 16855.28 0.00
1392.55 000 1941.45 000
0.00 39504 0.00 17596
1981.63 395.04 3596.72 179.96

(i) There are 11,04, 000 Redeemable Cumulative Preference shares, each having face value of INR 100 with a coupon of 8.50%, The holder is Apolio Hospilals
Enterprise Ltd and thess are redsemable in the year 2026 as per the ariginal plan. During the year FY 2022-23, Company has redeemed 50% shares and also

repaid dividend up to Sep, 2022 considering the cash posifion and profitab
paid earlier than the agreed schadula,

(ii) The terms of repayment of term loans and other loans are slated balow

ility of the company, and the balance of the praferance shares alongwith dividend can be

— Principal I !
Particluars Principal Outstanding as Terms of repayment Rate of Interest of Interest
Outstanding as at at on an
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-23 31:Mar-22

Axis Bank NIL NIL - - [
Axis Bank NIL NIL - - i

Yes Bank NIL NIL - - =

Yes Bank NIL NIL - - -

HDFC Bank NIL NIL - -

HDFC Bank NIL NIL - - ;

HDFC Bank NIL NIL - - [l
Yes Bank NIL NIL - -

Total - - I

|

As at As at } |

17 Other financial liabilities 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 i

Non Current Current Non Current Current i

Non-current I

a) Inlerest accruad - 66.15 - 14.34 I

b) Current maturities of lung-term debts - - - - i
¢) Seourity Deposils 11.32 - 14.37 - ‘
Total 11.32 66,15 14.37 14.34 |




18 Provisions

Employee benefils
Other Provision
Total

19 Deferred tax balances

Deferrad Tax Assels
Defarred Tax Liahilities
MAT Cradit Entitlerment
Total

20 Trade Payables

Trade Payable-MSME
Trade payabi=s - Other than MSME
Total

(i) The average credit pariud on purchases of goods ranges from immediate
payments to credit period of days

21 Other current liablilities

(a) Revenue receivad in advance

(b) Dsferrad revanue arising from governmeant grant
(c) Amount due to cusiomers

(d) Ouistanding & Olher Expense Payabie

(&) Slatutory Duas

(f) Inleunit Batances

(d) Depasits fram Nursing Students

Total

(d) Outstanding Experses
(b) Other Expense Payahla

As at As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Non Current Current Non Current Current
331.44 64.71 298,21 61.45
306,84 323,60
331.44 461.34 298.21 385.05
As at As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
738,77 412.66
(1,402.08) (1,068.28)
97.62 551,09
(565.70) (101.64)
As at As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
236,10 108.82
1,668.15 954 80
1,905.25 1,068.62
30-45 Days 30-45 Days
As at As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
100 89 112.20
493 48 226.31
4,138.34 2.608.11
174 66 14301
(0.00) (0.00)
4537 12.10
4,952.52 3,101.74
1,802.21 1.337.38
233613 1,270.75




Apollo Hospitals International Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial staterments for the period ended March 31,2023

All amaunts ars in Lakhs unless otherwise siated

22 Revenue from Operations
The following is an analysis of the Company's ravenue for the yaar fram
conlinuing operations {exciuding other income-sae nole 23)

Three Months Preceding Three  Corresponding  Yearto date for  Year to date fo rl
Particulars ended 31.03.2023  Months ended three months Current period  Previous perlod |
= 31.12.2022 ended 31.03.2022 ended 31.03.2023 ended 31.03.2022
(a) Revenue from rendering of heallhcare services 6,123.03 550408 500209 2293119 21,884 .19
(b} Revenue from salas at phanmacies 39738 400.46 29509 1,478.28 1,189.76
(c) Fees and Collactions 35.73 83.76 62.05 24984 259.*'3
(d) Other operaling revenuas 168.17 4338 4093 28503 304.81
6,724.31 6,091.66 5411.96 24,944.14 23,848.52 |
23 Other Incame
_a) Intersst income
) Three Months Preceding Three  Corresponding  Year to dats for Year to date for
Particulars ended 31,03.2023 Months anded three manths Current period  Previous period |
o 31.12.2022 ended 31.03.2022 ended 31.03.2023 anded 31.03.202|2
Interest on Bank Deposils & Olhers 107.07 (10.18) 8.42 17093 141.62 |
107.07 (10.18) 8.42 170.93 141.62 |
b} Dividend Income I
Dividends from equity investmanls
All dividends from equily investmerits designated as at FVTOCI - % " & 2
recoghisad for both the years relate to invesiments held at the end of sach
reporting peniod,
¢) Other non-operating income (net of expenses diractly - - - - -
attributable to such Income)
Finance lease contingent rental income - - - - -
Gthers {aggregate of immaterial items) - - - - =
(d=a+bic) 107.07 (10.18) 8.42 170.93 141.62
24 _Cost of materials Consumad
Three Months Preceding Three  Corresponding  Yearto date for  Year to date for|
Particulars ended 31.03.2023 Months anded three months Current peried  Previous perlod I
o 31.12.2022 ended 31.03.2022 ended 31.03.2023 ended 31.03.2022 |
Opening stock 517.83 523.62 517.75 531.16 355.49
Add: Purcheses 1.882.25 1,782.67 16597 82 7,214.76 B 038 1|
2,400.08 2,306.29 2,215.57 7,745.92 8,394.10
Less: Closing stock (553.53) (517 83} (531.18) (553.53) (531.16,
Cost of materials consumed 1,846.55 1,788.47 1,684.41 7.192.39 7,862.94]
25 _Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trads - Pharmacy
Three Months Preceding Three  Corresponding  Yearto date for  Year to date for
Particulars ended 31.03.2023 Months ended three months Current period  Previous period
i 31.12.2022 ended 31.03.2022 ended 31.03.2023 ended 31.03.2022
Inveniories at the end of the year:
Slock-in-trade (end of lhe year) 102.35 98 75 78.29 102.35 78.29
102.35 96 65 78.29 102.35 7829
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Stockein-trade (beginning of the year) 96 65 84,50 86 95 78.29 70.76
96.85 84.50 8695 78.29 70.76
Net (increase) / decrease (5.70) (12.15) 8.67 (24.06) (7.53)
26_Empioyee benefits expense
Three Months Preceding Three  Corresponding  Year to date for  Year to date for
Particulars nded 31,03.2023 Months ended thres months Current period  Previous period
2 o 31.12.2022 ended 31.03.2022 ended 31.03.2023 ended 31.03.2022
Selanes and wages 1,015.91 887.40 901.71 3.542.86 320340
Confribution to provident and other funds 68 29 56.46 4335 240,07 197.04
Bonus 49.01 0.94 20.16 139.12 7835
Siaff welfare expsnses 71.38 89.37 45.86 295.30 226.28
1,205.57 1,034.18 1,011.08 4,317.35 3,705.07
27 _Finance costs
Preceding Three Corresponding  Year to date for  Year to date for

Thres Months

Particulars Months ended three months. Current period  Previous period
IRIIBID  Ts1i23020  anded 11032022 ended 31939023 anded o1 e dias
Conlinuing operalinns
(a) Interest costs -
interasl on bank overdrafts and fvans (ather than those from relatad 48 83 52.711 4594 205871 240.78
partias)
Interest on obligalions under finance leases - - # " z
Interest on convertible notes - - - - -
Intersst on lease liability 69.74 399 76.25 30717 311.47
Other interesl expanse 16.93 15.46 2052 £G 32 91.55
Total interest expense for financial liabilities not classified as at
FVTPL
Less: amounts included In the cost of qualifying assets
135.29 152.16 142.71 582.20 643.80




Apollo Hospitals International Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the period ended March 31,2023

All amounts are in Lakhs unlees atherwise siaied

(b) Amartized interest cast on redeemabie preference shares 13563 23.48 (14 56) 84.01 75.27
(c) Exchange differenges ragarded a¢ an adjusimant to borrowing costs - - - - -
(d) Other borrowing costs - - - - - -
Unwinding of discount on costs to sell non-clirrent ansels classified as - - s = <
held for szle
148.92 175.62 128.15 666.21 719.07
28 _Depreciation and amortisation expense
Three Months Preceding Three  Corresponding  Yearto date for  Yearto date for
Particulars ended 31.03.2023 Months ended three months Current period  Previous period |
e 31.12.2022 ended 31.03.2022 ended 31.03.2023 ended 31.03.2022
on of praperty, plant and equipment pertaining to cortinuing 23383 198 87 242,35 024 36 975.16
i on right of use assat 5597 55.83 52.60 216.39 213.30
Amaortisalion of intangible asssts 6.33 €42 8.11 4065 32.39
Total depreciation and amortisation partaining to continuing 295.94 261.12 303.07 1,181.40 1,224.85
aperations
Depreciation of propery, plant and aquipment perdaining to - - - - -
disconlinued aperations
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 29594 261.12 303.07 1,181.40 1,224.85

29 _Other expenses

Three Months

Preceding Three

Corresponding

Year to date for

Year to dale for

29.3 _Income taxes relating to continuing operations

Particulars. Months ended three manths Current period  Previous perlod
MUATUANE TSAE0Z  ardwi 3105200 einded 31052033 aindedt 0 Ge K00
Powear and fuel 164.40 138.12 106.10 832,49 521.54
Water Charges 575 6.17 6.29 2824 3082
Rent 27.02 25.21 30.82 109,68 103 90
Repairs & Mainienance Expssnas - - - - -
Repairs to Buildings, Machinery & Gihers 149.14 (8.48) 87.21 338.09 Z65 90
Repairs to Medical Equipments 14.45 11.46 10.65 85.59 37.84
Repairs to Vahicles 8.48 (0.75) 3.15 2878 2835
Annual mainlainance Charges 91.86 61.00 7859 290.25 279.40
Insuranice 56.45 22.25 4452 66.78
Relainer fees to Doclors 613.79 £84.17 591.72 2,227.55
Quisource Charges - - - - -
House Kesping Expenses 244.16 74.89 121.75 545 03 46834
Food & Beverages Expenves 84.78 248.42 151.72 678.32 39303
Bio Medical Mainienance 2509 25.09 25.09 29.58 11091
Securily Charges 65.40 5356 47.30 22325 196,48
Oulsovrcing Expenses 1.84 39.29 30.57 200.01 206,98
Rales and Taxes, excluding taves on income 18.71 13.21 11.90 60.73 50 57
Other operaling & adminisiralive Expensas 40.31 45133 2075 154.27 187.43
Communication & Telephone Expensss B8.80 338 7.44 31.04 20.99
Direcior Sitling Fees 9.56 535 2.51 23.01 12.54
Advertisement, Publicily & Marksting 60.51 222.50 22353 603.59 5536.45
Travelling & Conveyance 5554 32.57 28.26 186.01 11188
Lagal & Piafessional Fess 58.16 104 85 Q389 224,86 435 46
Canlinuing Medical Education & Hospilality Expenses 7.9 226 1.49 48.13 14.69
Seininar Expenses 081 2.26 083 19,40 582
Books & Periadicals 0.50 0.49 052 2,13 231
Provision for Bad Debis (228.01) 6.58 9302 (202.23) (282.77)
Bad Debts Wrillen off 308 60 - 62.78 383.20 458 23
Loss on Sais of Asset = (1.82) 4.18 (1.82) 4.18
Miscalianaous srpenses 20.27 10.04 14,46 §8.45 38.24
Nel fureign exchange gains/ (losses) 0.08 (0.28) 0.05 043 288
1,895.27 1,827.23 1,898.87 7,648.18 6,551.71
29,1 Payments to auditors
a) For audit 7.55 3.09 2.88 18.85 11.08
b) For taxation malters & other services 0.71 0.83 0.71 6.63 1.18
¢) For reimbursement of expenses = - - = -
8.26 3.92 3.58 26.47 12.24
29.2 Expenditure incurred for corporate social responsibility 28.17 (504) 2647 38.99 3384

Three Months

Precading Three

Corresponding

Year to date for

Year to date for

Particulars Months ended three months Current period  Previous period
onded 303023 T30122022  ended 31.05.2022 ended $1.03.2023 anded 31.05.2022
Current tax
In respect of the current year (Current tax) 253.49 171.67 (171.86) 613.87 293.37
In respect of prior years = - = - -
Others - - - = 5
252.49 171.67 (171.86) 619.87 293.37
Net Current tax 253.49 171.67 (171.86) 619.87 26337
Defarred tax
In respect of the current year {Defered lax) 4558 {20.27) (188.58) 21.42 (42.75)
In respect of prior ysars = - - - -
Less : MAT credit Entitlsment 127.38 147.43 470.32 454.37 784.30
172.94 127.15 281.44 475.78 74155
Total income tax expense(Bafore MAT Entitiement Credit) 42843 208 .83 109.58 1.095.85 103492

recognised in the current year relating to continuing operations




Apollo Haspitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for
All amounts are in Lakhs uniess atherwise sialed

the periad ended March 31,2023

30 Segment information

30.1 Products and services from Wwhich reportable segments derive their revenues
The Directors of the company are directly invoived in the Operalions of the Gompany, including the subsidiarles, Accordingly, the Buard of Direc

Decision Maker (CODM).

The Company operales in mainly in India, and the drugs soid in the pharmacies, are regulated under the Di

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting

lars has been identified as the Ghi

(CODM) for the purpeses of resource allocation and sssessment of segment perfurmance focuses on the maodel of hy

ef Operling

Itheare

rug Conltrol Act, which applies uniformly all over the Counlry.

fices in products and services. Accordingly, hospilals, pharmacies, and Ny ing Inslitute

are in line with the accounting policies adopted in Standalone financial statements with the faliowing additional palicies for Segment
Reporting:
a. Revenue and expenses have boen identified to segments on the hasis of their relationship ta the aperaling aclivities of the sagment. Revenue and expenses, which relate 1 the
enterprise as a whale and are not allocabie ta segments on a reasanahle basis, have been included under “unatiocable axpEnses”,
b. Inter segment revenue and expenses are eliminated,
The Company has disciosad this Segment Reporling in Standalone Financial Stalemeanls as per Ind AS 108
30.2 Segment Revenues and results
The fallowing is an analysis of the Company's revenue and results from conlinuing operatinns by reportabie segment.
—_ Segment Revenue Segment Profjt
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Health care 23,216 22,189 1,561 1,343
Pharmacy 1,478 1,190 319 217
Nursing Institute 250 270 (51) 22
Total 24,944 23,649 1,829 1,582
Less: Inter Segment Revenue - (5 00) - (5.00)
Total for continuing operations 24,944 23 644 1,829 1,577
Share of profit of assaciates E -
Share of profit of juint ventures - =
Other income 171 142
Central administration costs and (235) (248)
direclors' salaries
Finance costs (666) (719)
Profit before tax {continuing operations) — 1,009 752

The accounling poiicies of the reportzble segmenls are the same as the Company's accounting poficies described in note 3. Ssgment profit represents the profit before tax eamed by each
fors' s

segment without allocation of central adminisiration costs and directon
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for the PUrposes of resource allocalion and assessment of segment

performance,
30.3 Segment assets and liabilities

Segment Assels

Haalth care

Pharmacy

Nursing Inslitute
Total Segment Assets
Assets relating operations. {now
disconlinued)
Unallacated
Total assets

Segment liabilities
Health care
Pharmacy
Nursing Insiitute
Total Segment liabilities
Liability relating to operatinns (now disconlinued)
Unallocaled
Total liabilities

For lhe purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating resaurces between segments:

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
26,110.13 2282483
179.14 14539
90.74 52.32

268 380 00 2302254
1,103 1,164 58
27,482.79 24,187.13
12607 95 975308
14,775.75 14,402.06
9¢ 0g 31.99
27,482.79 24,187.13
27,482.79 24,187.13

s' salaries, share of profit of associates, share of profit of joint ventures, other income, as well as finance cos's) This is the

»all assets are allocated to reporable segments other than investments in associates, investments in joint ventures, olher investments, loans, olher financial assels and current and de eired tax

aesels, which assels are reported under "Healthcare",

» all liabililies are allocatad to reportable segments other than barrowings, other financial liabilities current and deferre

30.4 Other segment information

Health care
Pharmacy
Nursing Institute

d tax liabilities which liabilities are reporled under "Heallthgare",

Depreciation and Amaorlisation Addition to Non Current Assets
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
1,178.48 1.2¢23 09 - (318.94)
0386 038 - -
1.56 0.50 - -
1,181.40 1,224.85 - (318.94)

In addition to the depreciation and amortisation reported above, impairment losses of Rs.Nil wera recognised in respect of praperty, plant and equipment and goodwill, respeclively. These

impairiment losses were atiibutable to the following reportable ssgments.

Impairment losses recognised for the year in respect of property, plant and equipment

Health care
Pharmacy
Nursing Institute

30.5 Revenue from major products and services

The following is an analysis of the Company's revenue from conlic wing operations from its major products and services.

Health care
Pharmacy
Nursing Institute

Nil
il
Nil
N
N\ 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
23.215.22 22,194 00
1.478.28 1,189.76
24984 263,76




In respect of the plan in India, the most recent acluarial valuation of the plan assets and the presant value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at March 31, 2023

Less: Inler Segment Revenue - {5.00)
2494414 23 848.52

Other Income 170.93 141.62
25,115.07 23,790.14

30.6 Information about major customers
Ne single customers contributed 10% or more to the Company's revenue for both 2022-2023 and 2021-2022.
31 Earnings per Share
31-Mar-23 31:Mar-22

Basic earnings per share

From continuing operalions 2.01 1.75

From discantinued operations - =

Total basic earnings per share 2.01 1.75

Diluted sarmings per share

From continuing operalions 2.01 1.75

From disconlinued operations - -

Total diluted earnings per share 2,01 | 1,75

31.1 Basic earnings per share

The eamings and weighted average number of equity shares usad in the calculation of basic eamings per share are as follows,

Frofil for the year atliibutable to owners of lhe Company 2,020 ‘ 1,762

Dividends paid on canvertible non-participating preference Shares - -

Earmings usad in the caiculation of basic earnings per share 2,020 1,782

Profit for the year from discontinued operations attributabie to owners of lhe Company - -

Others [describe] - -

Earnings used in lhe calculation of basic earnings per share from conlinuing operations 2,020 __1.762

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 1,006 | 1,008

31.2 Diluted earnings per share

The earnings used in the caloulation of diluled earnings per share are as follows.

Earnings used in the calculation of basie earnings per share 2,020 1,762

Inlerest on convertible noles (after tax at 30%) - .

Earnings used in the calculation of diluted samings per share Profil for the year from discontinued operalions attributable 2,020 1,762

Others [desaribe) = | 5

Earnings used In the calculation of diluted earnings pershare from continuing operations 2,020 1,762

The weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of diluted earmings per share reconciles 1o the weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic

earnings per share as follows:

Weighled average number of equity shares used in thecalculation of basic eamings per share

Shares desmed to be issued for no consideration In respect of:

- employee oplions

- partly paid equity shares

- convertible noles

~ olhers [describe]

Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share 1.006 1,006

32 Employee benefit plans
32.1 Defined contribution plans |
The employees of the Company's are members of a slale-managed retirement benefit plan operated by the government. The Company Is required to contribute a specified pe ceptage of
payroll cos!s to the relirement benefil scheme to fund the benefits, The only obligation of the Company with respect to the relirement benefit plan is to make the specified conlributions.
|
32.2 Defined benefit plans |

The company conlribules all ascertained liabilities with respect to gratuity to a fund under a Group Graluity Scheme of LIG of India whosa Plan Assels are managed by LIC |of India. The

company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit reliring plan covering eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lumpsum payment to the vested employees at relirement / death /

incapacitation / termination of employment based on the respective employees salary and tenure of employment with the company

These pians typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as shown belaw:

Investment risk The presant value of the defined benefil plan liability (denominated in Indian Rupee) Is calculaled using & discount
rale which is determined by reference to markel yieids at the end of the reparting period on govermment|bonds. For
other defined benefit plans, the discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on high quality corporale bonds when there is a deep market for such bands; if the return on plan assot s
beiow this rate, it will create a pian deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mixof |
investments in government secutilies, and other debt instruments. Further, the overseas plan has a relatively,
balanced |
investment in equity securifies, debt instruments and real estates, Due to the long-term nalurs of the plan fiabiiities,
the board of the overseas Fund considers it appropriate that a reasonable portion of the plan assels should be
invested in equity securilies and in real estale to leverags the return generated by the Fund.

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interesl rale will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offssl by|a increase
in the return on the plan’s debt investments |

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit pian liability Is calculated by reference to the besl eslimate of Ihe morality of
plan parficipants both during and afler their employment. An Increase in the life expectancy of the plan paricipants
will increass the plan's liability 1

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan |
participants, As such, an increase in the salary of the pian participants will increase the plan's liability. | J

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows, Valuation as at| |
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Discount rate(s) 7.44% ‘ 16.98%
Expecled raie(s) of salary increasea | I
- For next 1 ysar 7.00% ‘ | T.00%
- From the 2nd year 6 00% || 8.00%

Aftrition Rale




- For services upto 2 years and below
- For services 3 years to 4 years
- For services § years and ahove

Retirement Age

Fre-relirement martality

Average lungevity al relirement age for current beneficiaries of the plan (y=ars)*
Maies

Females

Average longevily at relirement age for current emmployees (future beneficiaries of the plan) (years)*
Males
Females

* Based on India's standard mortality table with modification to reflect expected changes in mortality/ others (pleass describe).

Amounts recognised in Standalone statement of profit and loss In respect of These defined benefit plans are as follows.

Service cosi; »

Current service cost

Pasl service cost and (gain)loss from setlaments

Net interest expense

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss

Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Relurn on plan assels (eacluding amounts included in nel inlerest expense)
Acluzrial (gains) / losses arising from changes in demographic asumplions
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in financial assumplions
Actuarial (gains) / lcsses arising from experience adiustments

Others [describe]

Adjustments for restriclions on the defined berefit 2sset

Components of defined benefit costs recagnised in other comprehensive income
Total

The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are Included in the 'Employee benefits
expense’ ling item in the Standalone slalement of profit and loss,
The remeasurament of the nel defined benefit liabiiity is included in other comprehensive income,

The amount included In the Standalone balance sheet arising from the enlity's obligation in respect of its defined banefit plans is as follows:

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

Funded status

Restriciions on assel recognised

Others [describe)

Net liabllity arising from defined benefit obligation

Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

Opening defined benefit obligation
Current service nsl

Interest cost

Remeasurement (gains)/losses:
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in demographic assumplions
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumplions
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments
Others [describe)

Pasl service cost, including losses/(gains) on curtailments
Liahilities axtinguished on settiements

Liabiiities assumed in a business combination

Exchangg differences on foreign plans

Benefits paid

Others [describe]

Closing defined benefit obligation

Changes in Fair value of Plan Assets

20.00%
8.00%
8.00%

58

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2012-14) Urban
Indian Agsured
Lives Mortality
(2012-14) Urban

1| 20.00%
| B00%
| 6.00%
| 58
|

ndian Assured
Liyes Mortality
(2012-14) Urban
nd iaa:w: Assured
Lives Mortality
(2012-14) Urban

I
NA o NA
NA | NA
1
31-Mar-23 314Mar-22
RN
% 1
5560 . 4250
% | -
@“30) ||| @y
51.30 | 1 38.70
320 | (040
- ‘! (0.04)
(20 99) | 1676
58,82 | a071
: |
21.03 107.02
03 .
[
|
|
]
i
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
(567.10) (473.10)
564 .60 534.30
(2.20) | 61.20
2.20 61,20
]
31-Mar-23 | 131.Mar-22
|
473.10 343 30
5560 [42.50
32.90 |22.10
. | (0.04)
(20.99) 1 16.76
58.82 l90.71
- | -
@2 (42)
567 | 1 a3
36 T
Year ended Yearlended
31-Mar-23 “Mar-

31-Mar-22




OCpening fair value of plan assals 53.43 | | 4018

Interest income 3.72 { 259
Remeasurement gain (ioss): |
Return on pian assels (excluding amounts included in net inlerest expenss) (032) | 004
Ofthers [describa] = | =
Contributions from the emplaysr 2.89 | 14.83
Conlributions from plan participants |
Assels disiributed on setflements - | -
Assets acquired in a business combination - i -
Exchange differences on foreign plans - | -
Benefits paid (32.20) | (42.30)
Qiher [describe]
Closing fair value of plan assats 27.52 | 15.35
L1008
The fair value of lhe plan assets for the India and overseas pian at live end of the reporting period for each category, are as follows
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
- Insurance Fund 56.49 53.43
Total §6.49 53.43
Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation: From the Fund !
Projected benefils payable in future years from the date of reporting 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
1st Following Year 58.61 | 45.70
2nd Following Year 38.34 [ 28.61
3rd Follnwing Year 4190 |1 3290
4th Following Year 44 50 | | 3412
5th Following Year 39.59 | | 3638
Sum of 6 to 10 Y=ars 253.96 | 1 190.27
Sum of Years 11 and above 69984 | | | 605.46

|
i |
Significant actuarial assumplions for the delermination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysas below have be:ar dq’farm‘med
based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions oceurting at the end of the reporting period, while holding all olher assumptions constant. | |
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is: |

|

Change in assumption Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-23 31:Mar-22
Discount rale 100 basis poinls 100 basis poinls -41.20 -36.60 47.20 | | 4230
Salary growth rate 100 basis poinls 100 basis poinls 46.20 41,10 -41.20 | | -36.80
Empioys=e Turnover 100 basis poinls 100 basis poinls. 030 -1.00 -0.50 | | 100

[}
The sensilivity analysis presenled above may not be representative of the aciual change in the definedbenefit obligation as it is unlikely thal the change in essumplions would acrur in iselation of
one another as some of the assumptions may be corralalad. : |
Furthermore, in presenting the above sensilivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefii obligation has been calculated using the projectad unit credit method at the end off the reporting
period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefil obligation liability recagnisad in the balance sheet, ( |

There was no change in the methods and assumptions usad in preparing the sensilivity analysis from prior years,

contribution policies are inlegrated within this study. Main stralegic chaices that are formulated In the actuarial and technical policy document of the Fund are:

* Assel mix based on 26% equity instrumenls, 50% debt instruments and 25% investmant properiies;
+ Interest rate sensitivity caused by the duralion of the defined benefit obligation should be reducad by 30% by the use of debt instruments in combination with interest rate swaps;

|
|
Each year an Asset-Liability-Maiching study is performed In which the consequences of the slralegic investment policies are analysed in lerms of risk-and-return profiles. ln;veslrﬁenl and
I
|
|

There has been no change in the process usad by the Company lo manage its risks frum prior perinds. |
The Company has employee benefit schemes by way of Privilege & Sick Leave encashment which are unfunded. These are actuarily valued every year and the liability thereof for Sick Isiave is
INR 1,12,04,828 /- and thal for Privilege Leave is INR 2,38 53 862 /-. The assumplions are the same as considered in Group Gratuity benefit (disiosed ahove). !
i
33 Financial instruments
33.1 Capital management

The Company manages its capilal to ensure that entilies in the Company will be abls to conlinue as going concerns while maximising the return to stakehaiders through the oplimisation of the
debt and equity balance. : |

The capilal structure of the Company consists of net debt {borrowings as detailed in borrawing noles) offsel by cash and bank batances and tolal equity of the Comipany.
The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements,

The Company's risk management commities reviews the capital structure of the Campany on a semi-annual basis, As part of this review, the commitiee considers the cost of capital ‘and the
risks associated with each class of capiltal. The Company is initaiting efforts to reduce the gearing ralio. |

Gearing ratio As at | As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows.

Debl (i) 2,376.68 3,77568

Cash and bank balances (including cash and bank batances in a disposal (6,563.02) (4,227 30)

Company held for sale) | |

Net Debt (4,186.34) (450.62)

Total Equity 13,542.46 2.216.31
|

Net debt to equity ratio (0.31) | (0.04)

(i) Debt is defined as long-term and short-lerm borrowings (exciuding derivative, financial guaranies contracts and conlingent consideralion), as described in notes,




33.2 Categories of financial instruments |
As at As at
Financial assets 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Measurad at fair value through profit or less (FVTPL)
(2) Mandalorily measured: - 1
(i) Equity invesiments . 4
(i) Derivative instruments other than dasignaled hedge accounting - »
relationships I

(b) Designated as at FVTPL Measured at amortised cost - -
(B Mutual Fund investments |

Measured at amorlised cosl |
(a) Cash and bank balances (including cash and bank balances in a 6,563 | 4227
disposal Company held for sale)
(b) Other financial assets at amortised cost (including trade receivables in 3,818 3,466
a disposal Company held for sale)

Measured at FVTOC|
(a) Debt instruments - o
(b) Investments in equity inslruments designated upon initial recagnition - -

Financial liabilities

Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
(a) Held for trading - = |
(b) Designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition - -
(c) Derivative instruments other than in designatad hedge |
accounting relationships

Measured at amartised cosl (including trade payabies balance in a disposal - b

Company held for sale) .
S 2377 | 3777
Trade Payabies and athers 1,971 | 1,083

Financial assets designated as at FVTPL
Carrying amount of financial assels designaled as at FVTPL - -
Cumulative changes in fair value allributable to changes in credit risk - -
Changas in fair value attributable to changes in credit risk recognised - =
during the year

The zarrying amount of current financial assets and current trade and ather financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are considensd to be the same as thelr fair values,
due to their short term nature,
The carrying amount of Security Depiosit measured at amortized cosl is considersd lo be the same as its fair value due to its insignificant value.

33.3 Financial risk management objectives

The Company's Corporale Treasury funclion provides services to the business, ca-ordinales access to domestic and intsrational financial markels, monilors and manages the financial risks
refaling to the operations of the Company through internal risk raports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks, Thess risks include markat risk (including cutrency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. |
The Carporate Treasury function reparts quarterly to the Company's senior management and board of directors | that monilors risks and policies implemented to mitigate risk exposures, |

33.4 Market risk

The Company's aclivities exposs it primarily to the financial risks of changes in fareign currency exchange rates and inleresl rates, The company's finance team manages these risk by éﬁeclive
financial managemeant.

33.5 Foreign currency risk management |
The Company underlakes transaclions denominated in foreign currencies; conssquently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise, Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved
policy pararmeters, |

The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monelary assels and manetary liabiiities at the end of the reporting period are as follows.

Assets as at

31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022

Trade Receivables (In USD) T [
Trade Recsivabies (In INR) s -

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Company is mainly exposed to currency dollars. |
The following tabie details the Company's sensilivity to a 10% increase and decrease against the reievant foreign currencies, 10% is the sensilivity rate used when reporting foreign cufrency risk
internally to key managamenl personnel and represents managemenl's assessment of the reasonably possible changs in foreign exchangs rates. The sensilivity analysis includes anly
outstanding foreign currency denominated monelary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rales. A positive number below indicales an
incrense in profit or equity where the Rs. strengthens 10% against the relevant currency. For a 10% weakening of the Rs. against the relevant currency, there would be a comparabie jmpact on
the profit or equity, and the balances balow would be nagative,

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
+10% -10% +10% =10%
Impact on Profil or Loss for lhe year - o = N
Impact on Equity for the year 2 3 - =

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inhersnt foreign exchange risk because the exposure at the end of lhe reporting period does not refiect the expasure
during the year, |




33.6 Interest rate risk management |
The Company Is exposed to inlerest rate risk because entities in the Company borrow funds at bath fixed and floating interest rates. The risk is managed by the Company by mainlaining an
approprisle mix betwvesn fixed and Noaling rale barrowings, and by the use of interest rale swap conlracts and forwerd interest rate conlracts, Hedging activilies are evaluated regularly to align
with interest rale views and definad risk appslite, ensuring the most cost-sffective hedging strategies are applied.

The Company's exposures to interesi rates on financial assels and financial liabilities are delaied in the liquidity risk management section of this note,

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have besn determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivalives and non-derivative instrumenits at the end of the reporting period, For floating
raie liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whale year. A 50 basis point Increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents managament's assessment of the reasonably possible change in inlerest fates.

Ifinterest rates had bean 50 basis points higher/lowsr and all other variables were heid constant, the Company’s.

33.7 Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its conlractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. Majority of the Company's transaclions are earned in cash or
cash equivalents. The trade receivables comprise mainly of receivables from Insurance Companies, Corporate cuslomers and Government Underiakings. The Insurance Co mpanies are
required to maintein minimum reserve levels and the Corparate Customers are enlerprises with high credit ralings. Accordingly, the Company's exposure ta credit risk In relation to lrade
receivahias is considered low, '
Before accepling any new credit ustomer, the Company uses an intemal credit scoring syslem to assess the potential customer's credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits and
scoring allrbuled to customers are reviewed anually. The outstanding with the debtors is reviewed periodically.

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by intemational credit-raling agendi

@
0

34 Liquidity risk managemaent
Ultimate respansibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of dir eclors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the managsment of the
Company's short-term, medium-teim and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities
and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously moniloring forecast and actual cash flows, and by mislching the malurity profiles of financial assels and liabilities. 34bslow sels out details of
additional undrawn facilities that the Company has at its disposal to furlher reduce liquidity risk.

34,1 Liquidity and interest risk tables

The foliowing tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivalive financialliabiiities with agreed repaymenl pariods. The tables have been drawn up basad on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabililies based on the sarliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The {ables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent
thal interest fiows are floating rate. the undiscounted amaunt is derived from interest rale curves at the end of the reporting period.
The contractual maturity is based on the sarliest date on which the Campany may be required lo pay.

Weighted
average effective
Particulars Intei’egst rate{ %) 3 mu;::: ol 1 Year to 5 years > 5 years
31-Mar-23
Non-intersst bearing - = =
Variable interest rate instruments * 8.10% 427.10 1,412.50 -
427.10 1,412.50 -
31-Mar-22
Non-interesl bearing - = »
Variable inlerest rale inslruments * 7.25% 131.45 1,104.15 841.26
131.45 1.104.15 841.26
* Thess are not cumulative
“* Exisling Average inlerest rate
The carrying amounts of the above are as follows: As at As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Non-interesl bearing |
Variable inlerest rats inslruments 183860 1,841.45
1,838.80 1,841.45
34.2 Financing facilities
As at As at
Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Secured bank overdrafl facility:
= amount used 2,21647 2,252.90
- amount unussd 1,091.90 2,247.10
330837 4,500.00

34.3 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disciosures are required)
The company considers that the carrying amounts of financial assels and financial liabilities recogrisad in the Standalone financial statements approximate their fair values.

As at As at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
- loans to related parties - “ - =
- tracle receivables 2,934 2,834 2999 2,999
- Cash and Cash Equivalenis 6,563 6,563 4,227 4,227
- Other Financial Assels 850 850 613 613
Financial liabilitles
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost;
- cunvertible noles (including interest accrued) - - - -
- perpetual noles - = - -
- bank loans = 1,768 1,788 2,121 2,121
- Cummulative Redsemabie Preference Shares 589 589 1,855 1,655
- loans from related parties - - - -
- Other Financial Liabilities 66 66 14 14

- trade payables 1,805 1,808 1,069 1.069




Apollo Hospitals International Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the period ended March 31,2023

All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Note 35: Consolidated Trade payables ageing schedu

le for the years ended as on March 31, 2023

Outstanding for following periods from Due date of payment

Particulars Less than 1 year| 1-2years 2-3 years SR thidn Total
3 years
(i) MSME 236.13 - - - 236.13
(i) Others 1,463.65 197.30 5.18 1.94 | 1,668.06
(i11) Disputed dues - MSME - - - < -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - 1.06 1.06
Total 1,699.78 197.30 5.18 2.99 | 1,905.25




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidaled financial stai=menis for the pariod ended March 31,2023
All amounts sre in Lakhs uniess ofherwise staied

36. Financial Instruments

Fair Value

The fair value of cash and cash equivatents, trade receivables. b wings, lrade payable and other curent Financial Assets and liabiiiliss approximate their carrying amount largely due to
the short-ienn nature of these insiuments, Investmenis in liquid and mutual funds, which are classifisd s FVTPL ars messurad sing net assst values al the reporting date multipliad by
the quanlity held, Fair value of investments in listed Equity Inslrumanis classified 22 FVTOCH / FYTPL is defermined using the quoled prices in an active markel for an identical instrument

The takie below anatysas financial insiryments maasurad al fair value al the reporiing date by the level in the fair value hisrarchy into which the fair value measursment ie calsgodized. The
amounts ars Sased on the values recognized in the statement of financial position

Leval 1 - Quoted prices (unadiusted) in active marksts for identical assels or lizbilities

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 4 that are absecvable for the sssat or liabiiity, eilher directly (Le. og

prices} or indirecily (i.e. derived from prices)

Level3 - Inputs for the asse's or liabiiitiss thal are not based an obssrvable marke! data (unobservabie inputs)

As at March 31, 2023 Rs. In lakhs)
Financial Assets Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income =
Equity Instruments - 0 - 0
Alternalive Invesiment Funds - - -

Investments at Fair Value through PL - - .
Equity Instruments - - 2
Mutual Funds (Quated) . = 5

As at March 31, 2022
Financlal Assets Total Lavel 1 Lavel 2 Level 3
[Investmenis at Fair Value thraugh Other Comprehensive Income 0 C .
Equity Instruments 2 % T 3
Allerniativa Investmant Funds 0 * -

Investments at Fair Value through PL - - =
Equity instruments ” . =
Mutual Funds (Quoiad) s - 3 %

Detalls of Financial Assets considered under Level 3 Glassification
Parficulars Investment in { Unguolsd Investmenis"
Balance as March 31, 2021

Gain/ (Loss) recognised in the statsment of profit and ivss
Gaini (Loss) recogrissd in Other G
Additions

Balance as March 31, 2022

Gain/ {Less) rocogrused in the stalement of profit and loss
Gain/ (Loss) recogrised in Other Comprehensive Income
Addifions

Balance as March 31, 2023

prehersive Income

Discounfrate for
Itein lack of
markstability Movemesnt

Alteriaiiva Invesiment Fund® (AIF,
Unquoted equity invesimenis®

"Mariagement dulermined the discount based on judgment after considedng the nature of the funds and unqunted aquity
invesimerits respectively,

Fair value of Financial Instruments by Catagory
The fellowing lable presernis the carrying value and fair value of 2sch category of finaruc:al ssssats and liabiities as al March 31, 2023,

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Falr Value Falr Valug
Particulars . 4 Fair Value Carrying Amortised FairValue | through
Carrying Value | Amortised Cost through ocj |Mroush Prafit] = Cost through OCI | Profit or
orLoss Lids
Financial Asseis
(a) Cash and Cash aquivalenis * 330877 2584.79 0
b) Bank balance 3.253.25| 1652.51 0
¢} Trade Rece! 2,934 04 2,999 30 0
d) Investimenis™ 0.00] 0 00| 0.00)
e} Oiher Financial Asse's *- Non Current 164.73 146 21 0]
1) Other Financial Assals *- Current BE4 83 - 466 55 1]
Total 10,346.72] 0.00| 0.00 0.00 7,839.54 0.00 0.00 0.00
[Firarcal Uabiies I
(a) Trade Payahias * 1,805 25| 1088 .52 0
(b} Other Financial Liabiiities *- Non Current 11.32] 4 37] 0
(c) Qihar Financial Liabiiitas *- Currenl 66.15] 4.34 0,
Total 1,082.72| 0.00 -| 0.00 1,097 33 0.00] - [

* 8l carrying velug
"lnvesimanis includas Non current Investmesnts other han Subsidiary




Apollo Hospitals International Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the period ended March 31,2023

All amounts are in Lakhs unless atherwise siated

37 Reconciliation of Effective Tax rate
Income tax expense can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars Amount M:r:;r:;:?ois
Profit/(loss) before tax 2,954.12
Add: Loss of Subsidiary « ACVHF -483.77
Total Profit/{loss) before tax 3,437.89
Enacled tax rales in India 29.12%
Income tax sxpense 1,001.11
Tax expense as per Profit & Loss Slalement 1,085.65
Less: Tax on CSR Expenses T 36.99 -10.77
Less: Effect of ax expenses recorded in previous years not included in profil considered aboye -83.77
Total 1,001.11

38 Additional infarmation In Consolidated Financial Slatemants

0.00

Net Assets, L.e,, Total Assets minus
Total Liabilities Share in Profit or Loss Share in OCI
Name of the entity As % of As % of As % of
consolidated net Amount consolidated Amount consolidated Amount
assets profit or loss profit or loss
|Apollo Hespitals International Limited 108 £7% 17,419.47 138 00% 2342.24 93.76% -28 52
|Indian Subsidiaries
a) Apollo CVHF Limited -6.43% -1.031.06 -28.50% -483.77 2.57% -0.78
Foreign Subsidiaries
Nil =
Minority Interest in all subsidiaries Associales (Investment as per the
aquity method) -2.15% -344.54 -9.50% -161.26 A67% -1.12
Joinl Venlures (as per proporionate consolidalionfinvestment as per
the equity method)
Indian Joint Ventures
Nil N p =
Foreign Joint Ventures
Nil - - =
Total 100.00% 16,043.88 100.00% 1,697.21 100.00% -30.42

39 Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are r

Delails of tranisactions hetween the Campany and other related parties are disciosed below,

39,1 List of Related Parties

Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited

Cadila Pharmaceuticals Lid

Gresn Channel Travels Services Private Limtiad
IRM Enterprises Private Limited

Slemeyle India Therapeutics Private Limited
Apoilo Sindoori Hotels Limited

Faber Sindoori Management Sarvices Private Limited
Indraprastha Medical Corparation Limited
Apotio Health and Lifeslyle Limited

MedSmart Logistics Private Limited

Dhruvi Pharma Privale Limited

Apolla Rajshres Hospilal Pwt, Lid.

Apolio Pharmacy Limiled

Apollo Hosp Education and Research Foundalion
Cad Ventures Pwt. Ltd.

IRM Energy Privale Limited

IRMLTD

Apollo Amrish Oncology Services Pvt Ltd

Apoila CVHF Limiled

AHEL (ARI) Apalio Research & lnnovation
Lifstime Wellness Rx Intarmational Ltd

Family Health Plan Lid.

Dr Sameer Dani

Dr Avichal Dani

List of Key managerial personnel ;

(i) Mr. Neeraj Rajbehari Lal - Chief Operaling Officer
(if) Mr. Sudhir Kumar Sahu- Chief Financial Officer

39.2 Trading transactions

Particulars during the year, Company enlilies snlsred into the fallawing t

Relationship

Halding Cormpany

Entities having significant Influence
Entities having significant influence
Entities having significant influence
Entities having significant influsnce
Entities having significant influence
Enlities having significant influence
Entities having significant influence
Eniities having significant influence
Enlities having significant influence
Eniities having significant influsnce
Entities having significant influence
Enlities having significant influence
Entities having significant influence
Enlifies having significant influsnce
Entities having significant influence
Enlifies having significant influence
Joint Venlure

Subsidiary

Conlrol

Control

Associales

Director

Son of Director

elaled parties of the Comipany,

have been eliminated on consalidation and are not disciosed in this nole.

ading transaclions with reialed parties that are nat members of the Company:

Details of the party (listed/Subsidiary) entering into the transaction I In'case monies are due to elther party as resull
of transaction
Value of the
PAN Topesof Relted party tarisaction ;::t::: il :;].UE t:'l‘nar\sac*jnn Opening balance Ciosing balance

$e. e NS | B RO | e evabePeyabl) | (Receiable{Payabe]

approved by the period

audit committee
1 |Apallo Hospitals Enterprise Limiled ABACASA43N |Reimbursement of Exps incurved by RPT on our behalf 51580 51580 1052 72633
Candrr im —eed nny
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1

AHEL (ARI) Apollo Research & Innavation

Apatlo Husp Eduration and Reszarch Foundation

Apollo Pharmacy Limited

APOLLO PHARMACIFS 110 [IODHPUR)
APOLLG PHARMALIES LTD [SHANTIGREM))
AHEL-APOLLO HEALTH € LTD

AHEL - APOLLD HOSPITALS ENTERPRISE LTD.,

Cadila Pharmaruticals Limited

Gren Chennel Travele Services Private Limiisd
IRM Enttergrises Private imited

IRM Energy Private Limited

IRM LTD

Cad Veritures Pyt Ltd,

Stemcyte Indiz Therapeutics Private limited

Apoallo Sindor Hotels Limited

Faber Sindoori Marsgement Services Private Limited

Indraprasthe Madieal Corporation limited

Apollo Health and tifesivle Umited

Apolln Amrish Gneology Services Put Ltd

AKSHARE APOLLO-AMRISH ONCOLOGY SERVICES PYTLTD
Apollo - Amrish (Debiors)

APQILO-AMRISH ONCOLOGY SERVICES PVT LTE (CASH Coll)
APOLLO-AMRISH ONCOLOGY SERVICES PVT LTD

Apollo CVHF Limited

MedSmart |ngistics Private Limited

Dhruvi Pharma Private Limited

Dheuvi Healthcere Private Umited

Apotlo Rajshree Hospital Pt Ltd.

Lifetime Wellness R Intemational Ltd

Family Health Plan Ltd,

Apollo Navi Mumbai

AHEL-Apallg Huspitals - Hyderabad

AHEL-APOLLO PHARMACY JLIRILFE HILLS OP
AHEL- { Project Div |
Apalla Surat Clinic

Dr Sameer Dani

AAACASAA3N

AAPLA5954P1

AAMCTAZS1E

AABCI6IAM

AECCTI347K

ABLCSTL74B

ARACCO34TH

ARBCF14R08

AAACI7398N
AADCAOT33E

AAMLATEIIM

AAQCA 26594

AAKCMSRORH

[ABBCD39K3H

AAECREISRG

ABDLARN2TH

AAACEIT40R

VI IR Ry

Transles to AHERF

Service Renidered (Income from operation etc)
Reimbursement of Exps incurred on behalf of RPT

Purchase of produet
Rental Income
Commission income

Transfer frum Main Pharmacy to Main Hospital
Service Rendered (lncome from operation etc)

Purchase of produrt

Service Rendered (ncome from operation etc)
Service received

Rental Income

Service Rendered {income from operation etc)

Service Rendered fIncome from operation etc)

Rental Income

Service Availed (Travel & Consultancy Services)

Reimbursement of Exps incurred on behalf of RPT

Service Availed fdescription to be given)

Reimbursenent of Exps incurred by RPT on our behalf

Purchase
Service Availed Idescription to be given)

Reimbursement of Exps incurred by RPT on our behalf

Service Rendered [lncome from aperation ete)

Service Rendered & Reimbursement of 2xps. By RPT an aur behalf
ABCSPL Debiorg

Transfer to AA05PL Afe

Servite Rendered & Reimbursement of Exps. By RPT on our behalf
Service Rendered {Income from operation ete)
Reimbursement of Exps incurred on behalf of RPT
Reimbursement of Exps incurred by RPT on our behalf

Purchase of product

Purchase of produrt
Service Rendered (lncome from operation etc}

Purchase of product
Service Rendered (Income from operation efc)

Service rendered

Service rendered
Service Avaled

Service rendered

Spunershiip Fees
Service renedsred

Purchase of laboratory items
Sponership Fees

Transfer to AHEL Chennai
Reimbursemant of Exps incurred by RPT on our behalf
Service renederad

Purchase of product

0.40

431
Ll

300
nns
0.08
118
%32
2902

T3785

105

137
1E3

3561

2065
167452

234004

29
13
028

61652

181784

1572

10800
830

45549

040

431
1

218
029
7358
93

5410
€885

1825
300
0.09
008

118
%3

802

737.85

105

137
11631

3561

1066
167461

284004

2483
13
0.28

1652
181784

1157

0.14
301

190.46
1873

930

45549

040

442

-0.40

7189
6318

427
5m

145
015

5154

928

016

13750

55.66
77058
-3an 0

212077

5151

6078

-183.19

26,96
484

-18557
-8100

151

138

111

006
543
10141

431
5384
052

4am

047
337
4098

-1851

016

841

6441
7632
62135
159083

104330
3476

-10875
-18487
11572

0.14
429

46.75
559
001
163

-14557
-8500

154
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Dr Avicha! Seni Service renedered ‘ 140 | 140

Opening/Closing Balance Nagaiive figures indicates Quistanding Payatle,
Note: For few related parties the recondiliation statement is in progress.

40 Compensation of key management personnel

41

42

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management personnel during the year was as follows:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Employee Benefits 124.84 124.84
124,84 124.84

The remuneration of directars and key executives is determined by the remuneration commitlee having regard to the pedarmance of individuals and markel trends,

Commitments
Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment - -
The Company's share of the capital commitments made jointly with cther joint venlurers refaling to its joint venture, is as follows:

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Commilments to conlribute funds for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment - E
Commitments to provide loans = -
Commilmenis to acquire other venturer's ownershipinierest when a particular event occurs or does notoceur in the future (please specify whal the partic - -
Others (please specily) e -

Contingent liabilities
Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
a) Claims against the Company not acknowiedged as debl 650.00 652 50
(b) Guaranises exciuding financial guarantess 65452 31.49
(d) Other money for which the cam pany is contingently liable ES
Customs Duty - -
Service Tax 176.17 176.17
Value Added Tax - -
Income Tax = A
EPCG - -
(e) Other money for which the sompany is conlingently liable -
- Conlingent liabiiities incurred by the Company arising from its
Interests in joint ventures & subsidiaries (Letter of Comiforl to YES
Bank for Credil Facilities of Apollo-Amiish Oncology Services Pyt
Ltd & Apallo CVHF Limited) -
{f) The Company has dispuled demands raised by Torrent Pawer
thal were never billed sarlier and are beyand the peniod of wo years .
stipulated in the Electricity Act, 55.73 5573

() A number of cantingent liabiilies have arisen as a result of the Company's interest in its joint venture. The amount disciosed represents the agyregale amount of such conlingent
liabilities for which the Company as an investor is liable, The extent to which an outflow of funds will be required is depsndent on the future operations of the joint venture being more or less
favourabie than currently expected. The Company is not contingently liable for the liabililies of ather venturers in its joint venture,

(i) The amount disclosed reprasents the Company's share of conlingent liabililies of assaciales. The extent to which an outflow of funds will be required is dependent on lhe future
operalions of the associales heing more or iess favourable than currently expected,

(iii) The guarantess included above excludas financial guaranless given to banks by the Company to secure the financing facilities oblained by the subsidiaries and other Company
companies,

43 Events after the reporting period

44

There are no reportable evenls occuring after the batance sheel date.

Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for Issue by the board of directors on 13th May, 2023,

45 Earnings in Foreign Currency

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
(1) Earmings in Foreign Currency
lncome from Hospital Services 131.84 104.73
(2) Expanditure in Foreign Currency
Travelling & Markeling Expenses 19.55 4.20
Professional charges (Pre & fallowup cars fees) 38.51 0.40
(3) Volume of Imparts in Foreign Currency - Capital Goods - -
(4) Imported Materials - -

(Consumplions reiales lo flems vsed for heallhcars sorvices only)




46 Events occuring after Reporting Dute:
There are no reportable events that have aucurred afier the reporting period.

47 Previous year {igures have been regrouped/re-classified wherever necessary to confirm with Current year's classification

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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